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Company Structure

Schibsted is a leading media group in the Nordic region. The activities comprise newspapers and
publishing, TV and film production, film rights, TV channels, Internet activities and mobile services.

Main events

1st quarter 2000

3rd quarter 2000

• Svenska Dagbladet broadens its coverage of
business with a supplement in tabloid format,
also offered for distribution as a supplement
to a number of regional newspapers.

• Schibsted decides to take part in the Orange
UMTS consortium in Norway and Sweden.

• A new management team is in place at Svenska
Dagbladet. Hannu Olkinuora taking over as
Editor-in-Chief with Mats Johansson as political Editor-in-Chief and Gunnar Strömblad as
managing director.
• Metronome Film & Television signs an agreement
to produce the Swedish version of the drama
series «Hotel Cæsar». The agreement covers 850
episodes and is worth SEK 250 million.
• Scanpix Scandinavia acquires 49% of Nordfoto
in Denmark and thus becomes one of the largest
picture agencies in Europe.
• Schibsted wins court cases in Germany and
retains its right to publish the free newspaper
20 Minutes in Cologne.

2nd quarter 2000

• Schibsted introduces incentive scheme, initially
for the group management and senior management of Aftenposten and Verdens Gang.

4th quarter 2000
• Inpoc.no launches mobile services in Norway.
• The Orange consortium is awarded UMTS licence
in Sweden, where Schibsted has 2% interest.
No licence is awarded in Norway.
• 20 Minutes launches free newspaper in Bern
and Basel, as well as an online newspaper in
Switzerland.
• Svenska Dagbladet switches from broadsheet
to tabloid format.
• The Internet city guide «Allt om Stockholm»
sold to TV 4.
• The venture capital fund APAX Europe IV invests
EUR 50 million in 20 Minutes Holding AG.

• Schibsted Telecom is established to develop
content for mobile services in Scandinavia.

• For the first time Aftonbladet’s circulation in
November exceeds the combined circulation of
its three main competitors.

• The price of Aftonbladet’s supplement is increased from SEK 2 to SEK 5.

1st quarter 2001

• Strikes affect Aftenposten and VG in May, preventing publication for five days.

• Norwegian Newspaper Publishers’ Association
agrees on 13% rise in paper prices in Norway.

• Scandinavia Online is listed both in Stockholm
and Oslo.

• Inpoc.se launches mobile services in Sweden.

• Eesti Meedia and Ekspress Group agree to establish jointly owned companies to publish a
tabloid newspaper and magazines, and for distribution purposes.

• Bladkompaniet acquires the interior design
magazine Maison which is published in Norway
and Sweden.
• Labour conflict at Schibsted Trykk results in
economic loss of NOK 20-30 million for
Schibsted.
• Svenska Dagbladet acquires 50% of the distribution company Pressens Morgontjänst.
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main events

The Schibsted Group

Schibsted is one of the leading media groups in the Nordic region. The activities comprise
newspapers and publishing, television and film production, distribution of film rights,
television channels, Internet businesses and mobile services. The Group’s newspapers
have a daily readership of 3.8 million. The various Internet sites, owned wholly or partly
by Schibsted, were in December 2000 visited by 12 million unique monthly users.
Schibsted’s online newspapers had 4.5 million readers, an increase of one million on
the previous December figure. The Group has 4 600 employees, of whom 2 400 work
outside Norway.
Schibsted’s current activities and its further expansion are founded on the Group’s
vision statement:

«Schibsted is to become Scandinavia’s leading media company by
being the preferred supplier of content for readers, viewers and
advertisers, irrespective of the medium chosen».
The Group’s headquarters are in Norway, but expansion during the last few years
has taken place mainly in other countries.

Schibsted’s Group
Management
From left: Jan Erik Knarbakk,
Trond Berger, Birger Magnus,
Sverre Munck and Kjell Aamot.

the schibsted group
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Business Areas

Newspapers
In Norway, Schibsted owns the two largest daily newspapers, VG and Aftenposten, as well as
the free newspaper avis1. It also has ownership interests in the five largest regional newspapers.
In Sweden, Schibsted owns Scandinavia’s largest daily newspaper, Aftonbladet, and the national
newspaper Svenska Dagbladet. Schibsted also owns modern printing plants in Norway, Sweden
and Estonia. In addition, it has holdings in Scanpix, Scandinavia’s largest picture agency, and the
Norwegian news agency, NTB. In Estonia, Schibsted is the majority owner of the country’s largest
media group, Eesti Meedia Group. This company owns the national newspapers Postimees and
50% of the tabloid newspaper SL Õhtuleht, as well as local newspapers, magazines and a television channel. Schibsted owns 41% of the free newspaper 20 Minutes in Cologne, Zürich, Bern
and Basel, and an online newspaper in Switzerland. The Group is giving high priority to the
establishment of Schibsted as a prominent player in the area of online newspapers, and in
December Schibsted’s online editions had a readership of 4.5 million.

Highlights of 2000
• Operating profit of NOK 450 million before goodwill and other revenues and expenses.
• Advertising revenues at all-time high in Norway and Sweden.
• Record results for VG and Aftonbladet, strengthening their positions in relation to competitors.
• Strike in May stops publication of VG and Aftenposten for five days.
• New management at Svenska Dagbladet, launch of business supplement and changed format
to tabloid. The newspaper acquires 50% of the distribution company Pressens Morgontjänst.
• Cooperation established with Ekspress Group in Estonia.
• Free newspaper 20 Minutes launched in Bern and Basel, as well as online newspaper
in Switzerland.

Activities
Aftenposten AS
Verdens Gang AS
avis1 AS
Schibsted Trykk AS
Kanal 2 AS
Eesti Meedia AS
Svenska Dagbladet Holding AB
Tidningstryckarna AB
Scanpix Scandinavia AB

100%
100%
100%
100%
96%
93%
89%
94%
76%

Aftonbladet Hierta AB
20 Minutes Holding AG
Harstad Tidende Gruppen AS
Adresseavisen ASA
Stavanger Aftenblad ASA
Fædrelandsvennen AS
Bergens Tidende AS
NTB AS
Asker og Bærum Budstikke ASA
1)
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business areas

49% 1)
41%
40%
32%
31%
25%
24%
22%
10%

Consolidated 100% in Schibsted’s accounts

TV, Film & Publishing

Multimedia

Schibsted is the leading Nordic media company in the area of television and
film. The business area TV, Film & Forlag comprises Schibsted’s 22 companies in
the area of television and film production, film distribution, part-ownership of a
television channel, and six book and magazine publishing houses. Schibsted has
a controlling interest in Metronome Film & Television, the parent company of
Scandinavia’s largest group of companies producing television programmes and
commercials. Sandrew Metronome has a leading position in Scandinavia both
as a cinema operator and as a buyer and distributor of films for cinema, video
and television. TV 2 is Norway’s largest commercial television channel, and until
the end of 2002 it has exclusive rights on nationwide television broadcasting in
Norway financed through advertising. Schibsted’s activities within publishing
include Chr. Schibsteds Forlag which was founded in 1839 and was the basis
from which the entire Schibsted Group developed.

Schibsted Multimedia realises the Group’s strategy in
the new media area by investing in businesses with a
focus on the Internet and mobile services, as well as
activities which can strengthen the Group’s expertise,
technological base or market positions in these areas.
The Multimedia business area has an international
perspective, and its operations include mobile services,
Internet bookshop and online ticket sales. The business
area also has shareholdings in a number of companies,
the most important of which is a 35% holding in
Scandinavia Online AB. Schibsted Multimedia also invests
in specialised funds.

Highlights of 2000

Highlights of 2000

• Operating profit of NOK 96 million before goodwill and other revenues and expenses.
• Metronome Film & Television increases turnover
by 107% and posts its best ever result.
• TV 2 records best performance ever and is one of
the most popular media brand names in Norway.
• Bladkompaniet launches the all-Norwegian
comic series Pondus with instant success.

• Operating loss of NOK 113 million before goodwill and other revenues and expenses.
• Stock exchange listing of Scandinavia Online in
Stockholm and Oslo.
• Establishment of Schibsted Telecom (inpoc.no and
inpoc.se) for the development of mobile services.
• Schibsted has 2% interest in Orange consortium
which was awarded UMTS licence in Sweden.
• Establishment of investment company European
Media Ventures (EMV).

Activities

Activities

Chr. Schibsteds Forlag AS
Bladkompaniet AS
SMS Publishing AB
Dine Penger AS
Metronome Film & Television AB
Sandrew Metronome AB
Dagens Medisin AS
TV 2 AS

100%
100%
100%
100%
65%
50%
50%
33%

Schibsted Telecom AS
European Media Ventures AS
Bokkilden AS
Alt om København KS
Scandinavia Online AB
BiljettDirekt Ticnet AB
ABC Startsiden AS
Crossroads AB
Safetel ASA

100%
100%
100%
49%
35%
31%
17%
17%
12%

All ownership shares as of 31st March 2001.

business areas
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The Tinius Trust
Statement given by Tinius Nagell-Erichsen after Schibsted ASA’s
Annual General Meeting – 8th May 1996:
Ownership is a much more important issue for a newspaper than for ordinary industrial companies. A newspaper is not just any product, but a forum for vital community information and the exchange of opinions on which our democratic society is built.
As well as being long-term in nature, newspaper ownership should therefore be
openly committed to the newspaper’s own values. At times it may be necessary to
defend these values, to ensure the newspaper’s continued freedom and editorial
independence. Being a major shareholder is then an advantage.
My 26.1% shareholding in the Schibsted Group is ensured special rights under the
company’s Articles of Association. Under normal circumstances, these rights would
require a much larger ownership, but they were part of my conditions when agreeing to
the transition from a privately held company to a limited company several years ago.
As long as my shares are held as a single unit, they constitute a special guarantee of freedom and independence for Schibsted’s newspapers and mass media. The
strength of this shareholding is so great that a takeover would be very difficult. To
ensure that these shares remain as a single unit, I first founded Blommenholm
Industrier, to which I transferred my shareholding in Schibsted. Blommenholm
Industrier AS has a share structure which normal dividend rights, but there is only
one voting share (A-share). I have decided that after my death, or when I may otherwise decide, the A-share will be transferred to ”The Tinius Trust” which will be governed by the following rules:
”The Schibsted Group shall continue to be a media group and be managed pursuant to the same editorial and commercial principles as it is today. In relation to
Aftenposten and Verdens Gang, the purpose is to maintain the role these newspapers have played to date in Norwegian society.
l. Aftenposten and Verdens Gang shall have free and independent editorial governance.
ll. Aftenposten and Verdens Gang shall be based on Christian values, Norwegian
culture and democratic principles.
lll. In accordance with the principles underlying their publication, Aftenposten and
Verdens Gang shall represent quality and credibility. The two newspaper shall
convey information about issues of importance.
The principles of editorial freedom, credibility and quality of the newspapers
shall also be guiding for other media and publishing businesses owned by the
Schibsted Group. The Trust shall work for the long-term, sound, financial development of the Schibsted Group. When necessary, the Trust shall also endeavour to
influence the general conditions needed to ensure free and independent editorial
governance in other media businesses.”
I have appointed Bjørn A. Holter-Hovind, Ole Jacob Sunde and John A. Rein to the
Board of the Trust, with myself as chairman. Why these persons? For many years we
have worked together on the organisation of Schibsted. They have been involved in
the running of the Group’s business affairs, and I can think of no better candidates.
”The Tinius Trust» is registered with the County Governor of Oslo and Akershus.
As a gift, I have transferred NOK 10 million to the Trust. The amount underlines the
importance I attach to the Trust.
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The process of change in the media sector looks set to continue, and
in terms of creating a new media reality Scandinavia is one of the
world’s most exciting markets.
The Schibsted Group recorded its best result ever in 2000. The operating profit totalled
NOK 537 million, while the profit before tax was NOK 950 million. After tax, the
accounts show a profit for the year of NOK 615 million. The cash flow from operations
amounted to NOK 1 049 million.
The performance for the year as a whole reflects a general improvement in
underlying operations in all the Group’s business areas. The Group’s newspapers,
multimedia, TV, film and publishing companies all held or strengthened their market
positions. The accounts include investments of NOK 215 million in new business areas
such as mobile services, new media in the newspaper sector and the 20 Minutes
project which were charged against profits in the course of the year.
The Schibsted share price was negatively affected by repricing of the international
TMT sector in 2000, just as the overheated ”dot.com” market had the corresponding
opposite effect in the previous year. Regardless of these fluctuations, the Group has
remained committed to the long-term strategy that was drawn up in 1995. The vision
of becoming Scandinavia’s leading media company by being the preferred supplier of
content for readers, viewers and advertisers, irrespective of the medium chosen, as
formulated in 1995, remains the basis upon which all major decisions are made
affecting Group strategy.

Tinius
Nagell-Erichsen
(67)

Chairman of the Board
Master of Science 1959 from
the London School of
Economics. Member of the
Boards of Aftenposten AS
and Aftonbladet AB. Former
journalist with Aftenposten
and other newspapers,
managing director of Verdens
Gang AS and Aftenposten
AS. Chairman of Norwegian
Federation of Newspaper
Employers for several terms
in period 1972-87. Chairman
of Schibsted’s Board of
Management for several
terms. Member of Board of
Verdens Gang AS 1966-77
and 1984-96, Chairman
1978-83.

Ole Lund (65)

Deputy Chairman
Law degrees in 1959 and
1968. Barrister with the
law firm BA-HR. Former
managing director of the
Nordic Shipowners’
Association (1978-86) and
former chairman of Den
norske Bank. Chairman of
Zürich Protector Forsikring
ASA, Statoil AS, Hotel
Continental AS, Nordisk
Språkteknologi AS, Norsk
Medisinaldepot and
Norwegian Cruise Line
Holding ASA.

t h e b oa r d o f d i r e c t o r s ’ r e p o r t 2 0 0 0

7

Business areas
Newspapers

Ole Jacob
Sunde (47)
Degrees in business from
Université de Fribourg,
1976 and Kellogg School
of Management, Northwestern University, 1980.
Executive chairman of
Formuesforvaltning ASA.
Established Industrifinans
Forvaltning ASA (1983).
Managing director until
June 2000. Former consultant with McKinsey & Co.
(1980-83). Various Board
appointments, including
membership of Board of
the Tinius Trust.

Kristian
Wilhelmsen (59)
Certified public accountant
with own accountancy firm
in period 1968-85.
Managing director of Lyons
Seafood Ltd., England, in
period 1985-88 and Board
member since 1995. Deputy
chairman of Verdens Gang
AS. Member of Board of
Sparebanken Jevnaker/
Lunner and other companies.
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The year was characterised by a positive trend, as reflected in growth in the advertising markets, a strengthened position in the market for casual sales newspapers and
a high level of traffic on the Schibsted newspapers’ Internet sites. The operating profit for the year in this business area totalled NOK 450 million, before goodwill and
other revenues and expenses, which was an improvement of NOK 128 million on
1999. Advertising revenues for the print editions of Aftenposten, VG, Aftonbladet
and Svenska Dagbladet were 11% up on the previous year. There was a sharp rise in
advertising revenues from the newspapers’ online editions, including FINN.no, from
NOK 69 million in 1999 to NOK 181 million in 2000. The Group’s free newspaper in
Oslo, avis1, also recorded sound growth in both advertising revenues and volume.
Aftonbladet maintained its position as the undisputed leader among Sweden’s
casual sales newspapers. In November, for the first time, Aftonbladet’s circulation
exceeded the combined circulation for Expressen/GT/Kvällsposten. There is nothing
to indicate that Aftonbladet’s circulation has been affected by the free newspaper
war in Stockholm to any appreciable extent. Aftonbladet’s circulation fell by 4 000 in
the course of 2000.
Despite very high circulation figures in the second half of 1999, VG again experienced further improvement in 2000, with circulation rising by 2 400 on weekdays
and 5 400 on Sundays, respectively. Aftenposten morning edition saw circulation
drop by approximately 7 800 in 2000, mainly due to subscribers replacing a full subscription with individual products and credits to subscribers related to previous production problems at the Nydalen printing plant in Oslo. Despite the lower circulation, the number of readers of the morning edition increased to 813 000 in 2000.
Since 16th November, Svenska Dagbladet has been published in tabloid format, and
in December and January 2001, for the first time for a very long time, Svenska
Dagbladet’s circulation was up on the same period in the previous year.
In November, APAX took a shareholding in 20 Minutes Holding AG with an
investment of EUR 50 million, valuing 20 Minutes at EUR 180 million. At the same
time, Schibsted ASA and the Swiss investment bank A&A Group invested EUR 22
million and EUR 5 million, respectively. The company is thus fully financed in accordance with the planned expansion programme.
Schibsted’s Internet newspapers in Norway and Sweden are among the most
visited in both countries, and the positive development continued in the fourth
quarter. Aftonbladet is the largest online newspaper in Sweden, with 1.5 million
readers in December 2000. In the fourth quarter VG had 832 000 weekly readers, up
18% from the third quarter. VG is clearly larger than the other Norwegian online
newspapers and is now approaching Scandinavia Online (SOL), Norway’s largest
Internet site.
The Internet advertising collaboration between Aftenposten and the larger regional Norwegian newspapers - FINN.no - is growing at a faster rate than its competitors in the Norwegian market. In November, FINN.no had more page visits than the
combined figure for all of its largest competitors in the market for jobs, property,
cars and boats. In January 2001 FINN.no had 17 million page visits. FINN.no is now
the 11th largest Internet site in Norway, only behind general portals and Internet
newspapers.
In December, Svenska Dagbladet entered into an agreement with Dagens
Nyheter to acquire 50% of the distribution company Pressens Morgontjänst for SEK
97.5 million. This purchase will reduce the newspaper’s distribution costs.

t h e b oa r d o f d i r e c t o r s ’ r e p o r t 2 0 0 0
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Gunnar
Nordby (58)
Certified typographer,
1962. Employed in
Aftenposten AS since
1955. General secretary
of Aftenposten’s printing Union. Member of
the National Committee
of the Norwegian Union
of Graphic Workers.

.................................................

......................................................................................................................

.................................................
Multimedia
The results recorded by the Multimedia business area were affected by the listing of
Scandinavia Online AB (SOL) and the sale of 5% of the shares in the first half of the
year. Following the listing and the sale of shares in SOL to Telia, Schibsted now has a
34.6% holding. Since 1st April 2000 Schibsted has treated SOL as an associated
company for accounting purposes. Schibsted’s share of SOL’s results for 2000 was a
loss of NOK 172 million. SOL is fully funded and requires no further financing from
Schibsted to achieve the goals that have been set.
The main focus in this business area is to position the Group for opportunities in
the field of fixed and wireless broadband, as well as venture investments. In
November, Schibsted Telecom launched its GSM-based service, inpoc.no in Norway,
and the launch of Inpoc.se in Sweden took place in February 2001. In December,
Orange Sverige AB was awarded an UMTS licence. Schibsted has a 2% holding in the
consortium which will involve an equity investment of around NOK 200 million over
five years. Through participation in this consortium Schibsted is well placed to play a
leading role in the development of services to be provided over the broadband network in the Nordic countries in the coming years.
European Media Venture will be responsible for managing existing and new
financial investments for Schibsted Multimedia and the Group’s newspapers. The
investments will be made by providing advertising space in the newspapers and
making cash payments. In 2000 the Multimedia business area had total operating
revenues of NOK 73 million, against NOK 139 million in 1999. The operating result
before goodwill and other revenues and expenses was a loss of NOK 113 million,
against a loss of NOK 86 million in 1999. The figures are not directly comparable
with 1999 as SOL ceased being a pro rata consolidated subsidiary and became an
associated company with effect from the second quarter.

Hilde
Harbo (41)
Degree in Political
Science. Journalist with
Aftenposten AS since
1985, currently head of
the political editorial
staff. Formerly deputy
employee member of
Schibsted’s Board (199093). Deputy leader of
Aftenposten’s Editorial
Staff Union, vice-president
of the press Corps of the
Norwegian National
Assembly and member
of the Board of the Oslo
Union of Journalists.

Toril
Brandtzæg (46)
Degree in Journalism and
Media Studies, 1999.
Employed in Aftenposten
AS since 1993. Senior consultant with Dataservice.
Leader of Schibsted’s Press
Employees’ Union. Deputy
representative on the
Board of the Union of Press
and Media Employees.

t h e b oa r d o f d i r e c t o r s ’ r e p o r t 2 0 0 0

9

TV, Film & Publishing
Cato A.
Holmsen (60)
Engineering graduate
from ETH Zürich, 1964.
Additional studies at
University of Newcastle
and IMEDE 1973. Chairman
and partner, FSN Capital.
Former deputy Group CEO,
Scancem AB and CEO,
Scancem International
ANS. Member of Boards
of Aftenposten AS, 20
Minutes Holding AG,
Eiendomsspar AS, Victoria
Eiendom AS, Aker Maritime
ASA, Eksportfinans ASA
and Johan G. Olsen AS and
other companies.

Jan Reinås (56)
Degree in business.
Additional studies in planning, industrial efficiency,
transport economics and
market-oriented management. Executive MBA
from INSEAD. Group CEO,
Norske Skog. Former CEO,
Fosen Trafikklag,
Trondheim Trafikkselskap,
SAS Norge. Group CEO,
SAS. Chairman of
Norwegian Wood Pulp
Industry Branch
Association. Member of
Board of PIL, NHO and
CEPI. Former chairman of
Sparebanken Midt-Norge,
Postverket and NSB.

2000 was a very successful year for this business area. The companies controlled by
Schibsted saw aggregate revenues rising by 52% to NOK 1 076 million, while the operating profit before goodwill and other revenues and expenses increased from NOK
32 million in 1999 to NOK 78 million in 2000. At the same time, TV 2 had its best year
ever, contributing NOK 70 million to Schibsted’s profits as an associated company.
Schibsted’s leading position in the field of Scandinavian TV production was greatly strengthened in 2000. The 13 production companies of the Metronome Film &
Television group increased their revenues by 107.5%, from SEK 321 million in 1999
to SEK 666 million in 2000. The operating profit for the year was SEK 61 million, an
improvement on the 1999 figure of SEK 15 million. Measured by revenues, the
Metronome Film & Television group was roughly twice as large as its closest competitor in the Nordic area at the end of 2000.
The Sandrew Metronome group recorded a profit for the year of SEK 33 million,
against SEK 29 million in 1999, while revenues increased from SEK 864 million to
SEK 913 million in 2000. Sandrew Metronome has broadened its collaboration with
Warner and is now the film, video and DVD distributor of Warner’s films in all the
Nordic countries. Along with the contribution made by its own film portfolio, this

Liz
Ovesen (40)
Sales coordinator in
Verdens Gang since
1980. General secretary of VG’s Press
Employees’ Union
since 1994.
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means that the annual revenues of the Sandrew Metronome group will increase to
more than SEK 1 billion in 2001. Schibsted owns 50% of the company.
Higher viewer figures, increased advertising revenues and a gain on the sale of
shareholdings resulted in a profit after tax of NOK 214 million for the TV 2 group in
2000, against a loss of NOK 58 million in 1999. The operating profit was NOK 238
million, compared with NOK 143 million in 1999. There was strong demand for
advertising throughout the year. At the same time, TV 2 strengthened its position in
the market for viewers during the year and is the undisputed leading Norwegian TV
channel for the commercially important age group from 12 to 49. TVNorge continued to run at a loss, and TV 2’s holding put its share of the loss at NOK 83 million,
including goodwill amortisation. This is a slight improvement on 1999.
Schibsted’s publishing companies had total revenues of NOK 277 million in 2000,
against NOK 268 million in the previous year. Through acquisitions and organic growth
the publishing companies have become a group of specialised units with leading
expertise in a number of areas which is enabling them to steadily strengthen their
position in the market. The operating profit for the year before goodwill and other
revenues and expenses amounted to NOK 18 million, against NOK 8 million in 1999.

Results
Group revenues in 2000 totalled NOK 8 270 million, an increase of 11.7% on the
previous year. The operating profit before goodwill and other revenues/expenses was
NOK 513 million, against NOK 298 million in 1999. The sharp improvement in 2000
was mainly due to higher underlying earnings in the various business areas. The
operating margin before goodwill and other revenues and expenses stood at 6.2%,
up from 4% in 1999. The operating profit for the year totalled NOK 537 million, up
from NOK 172 million in 1999. The operating profit for 2000 includes a net contribution of NOK 96 million from other revenues and expenses, consisting mainly of a
refund of pension funds in Sweden (NOK 116 million), restructuring costs in Sweden
(NOK 82 million) and gains on the divestment of subsidiaries (NOK 62 million). The
operating profit for 1999 includes a net loss of NOK 43 million from other revenues
and expenses, consisting mainly of start-up costs for a new printing plant in Oslo
(NOK 119 million), restructuring costs (NOK 69 million) and gains on the divestment
of subsidiaries (NOK 145 million).
Net financial items showed a profit of NOK 31 million (NOK 9 million), while
associated companies provided profits of NOK 382 million (NOK (67) million). The
improvement was mainly due to a gain of NOK 550 million on the floatation of SOL
and the share of TV 2’s profits amounting to NOK 70 million. This was partially offset
by the share of SOL’s loss totalling NOK 172 million, the share of the loss recorded
by 20 Minutes totalling NOK 90 million, and the share of the loss posted by
GoToGate AS amounting to NOK 26 million.
The profit before tax was NOK 950 million (NOK 114 million), while the net profit
came to NOK 615 million (NOK 27 million). The cash flow from operations amounted to
NOK 1 049 million (NOK 15.15 per share), compared with NOK 607 million (NOK 8.76
per share) in 1999. A total of NOK 708 million was invested during the year, with shares
and other investments making up NOK 334 million, while maintenance and other
operational investments accounted for NOK 374 million. Total liquid reserves at 31st
December amounted to approximately NOK 2 287 million, compared with roughly NOK
1 740 million as at 1st January. At the end of the year, the Group had an equity ratio of
37.8%, compared with 33.3% at the previous year-end. Net interest-bearing debt at 31st
December totalled NOK 1 168 million, against NOK 1 502 million at the end of 1999.
The Board will ask the General Meeting to approve a dividend of NOK 2 per
share, up from NOK 1.75 in 1999.

t h e b oa r d o f d i r e c t o r s ’ r e p o r t 2 0 0 0 11

In accordance with the requirements of section 3-3 of the Accounting Act, the
Board confirms that the annual accounts for 2000 have been prepared on the
assumption that the Group will continue as a going concern.

Prospects

Einar
Kloster (63)
MBA from Dartmouth
College, USA. Self-employed
businessman. Former president and CEO, Philips
Lighting Holding, Holland.
Chairman, Norsk Hydro
ASA. Member of Boards of
Aftenposten AS, Leif Høegh
& Co. ASA, Veritas and
other companies.
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The media market is changing, and in this respect the Scandinavia is an exciting and
innovative marketplace. For Schibsted, a company with long traditions, this also presents challenges. But most of all it presents a number of interesting opportunities
for further expansion and development.
With good underlying earnings from the established businesses and with strong
positions in new growth areas, the Group is well positioned for continued expansion.
Scandinavia is the company’s main market, but this will not prevent us from exploiting business opportunities in other countries where our obvious competitive advantages make this appropriate.
The inflow of advertising revenues to the printed newspapers is still at a good
level, but it is unlikely that the 2001 will see a repetition of the record level achieved
last year. Growth in both the Norwegian and the Swedish advertising market is
expected to flatten out, and uncertainty surrounds the level of revenues that can be
expected from online advertising in the short term. At the same time, it is encouraging that opportunities are appearing in new market segments, such as the market
for mobile services. The Nordic TV production market has continued to grow in 2001,
as has the market for TV advertising.
Many newspapers have experienced a downward trend in circulation, and
Schibsted is keeping a close watch on developments. Both VG and Aftonbladet
strengthened their positions in relation to their competitors, and this is expected to
continue in 2001. The Group is also aiming to reach reader groups who would otherwise not read newspapers by publishing the free newspaper 20 Minutes.
Schibsted is actively seeking to create value through investments in new media.
This is a process which involves both the development of companies within new
media areas and the disposal of ownership interests. There is a great need for financial flexibility and freedom of action in order to exploit opportunities that are geared
to the future and that can contribute to Schibsted’s further development. The focus
will be on companies where Schibsted has strategic control.
Further steps are being taken to improve profitability within the Group. In the
period ahead it will be increasingly important for the Schibsted Group to exploit the
competitive advantages it has in the home market. In the first instance, this means
maintaining and strengthening the Group’s strong market positions in the traditional media areas, while at the same time establishing corresponding positions in the
new media channels. Our ability to reinvest the positive cash flow from established
businesses in growth areas within the media sector will be decisive for our success
in the future. So far, Schibsted has succeeded better than most of the comparable
media companies, and we enjoy a position at the very forefront of developments in
Internet activities in Scandinavia.

................................

.............................................................................

Organisation and the external environment
The Schibsted Group had 4 616 employees at year-end, compared with 4 910 at the
end of 1999. Of these, roughly 2 400 were employed outside Norway. The Schibsted
companies operate within the framework of current environmental regulations.
2000 was a challenging year for all parts of the Group and the Board of Directors
wishes to thank all employees for their untiring efforts in a year characterised by
major changes.
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Ownership structure and shareholder policy
The Schibsted shares were traded at NOK 149 on the Oslo Stock Exchange as 2000
started, and at year-end it stood at NOK 108.50, a decline of 27%. During the same
period the All Shares Index at the Oslo Stock Exchange fell by 2%.
The Group’s shareholder structure was relatively stable throughout the year.
Schibsted’s largest shareholder, Tinius Nagell-Erichsen, continued to control 26.1%
of the company’s shares through Blommenholm Industrier AS.

Schibsted ASA
Schibsted ASA is the parent company of the Schibsted Group. The company’s operating revenues are mainly in the form of royalties from Verdens Gang AS, while operating expenses relate to the ongoing operations of the Group administration. The
Group recorded an operating profit of NOK (38) million in 2000, while the pre-tax
profit was NOK 323 million.
In 2000 Schibsted ASA had an average of 51 employees, with the Group chief executive officer as managing director. The working environment is good, and the Group’s
activities do not cause environmental damage.

Allocation of the profit for the year for Schibsted ASA
The Board of Directors of Schibsted ASA proposes the following allocation of the profit
for the year (NOK million):
Net profit for the year

241

Dividend
Group contribution paid (net)
Transferred from other equity
Total allocations

138
138
(35)
241

Oslo, 22nd March 2001

Tinius Nagell-Erichsen
Chairman of the Board

Ole Lund

Toril Brandtzæg

Hilde Harbo

Cato A. Holmsen

Einar Kloster

Gunnar Nordby

Liz Ovesen

Jan Reinås

Ole Jacob Sunde

Kristian Wilhelmsen

Kjell Aamot
President & Chief
Executive Officer
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newspapers
On 14th May 1860, in order to utilise spare printing capacity, Christian Schibsted started the newspaper Christiania Adresseblad – or
Aftenposten as it came to be called. Since then, Schibsted has grown into one of Scandinavia’s leading newspaper groups. Today, with media
habits in a process of change, one of Schibsted’s main challenges is to transform its traditional newspaper businesses into multimedia enterprises and develop free newspapers for people who would otherwise not buy newspapers.

Newspapers

Schibsted is the largest newspaper group in Norway,
Sweden and Estonia through its ownership of several of the region’s leading newspapers. The Scandinavian media market is currently undergoing great
changes, with separate national markets gradually
being replaced by a single Scandinavian market. This
development has made it necessary for Schibsted
to establish a common Scandinavian platform and
organise its activities in a way that enables it to take
maximum advantage of this development.
For the traditional newspaper companies there
are two main challenges: strengthening and development of editorial products, combined with
continuous improvements in efficiency in order
to maintain and improve profitability. The strong
brand names of the traditional newspapers are
main elements in the Group’s focus on new media
areas. Schibsted’s editorial expertise and understanding of readers and advertisers gives us unique
avenues of opportunity as a provider of content to
the new media channels.
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From a newspaper company to a
multimedia conglomerate

Birger Magnus

Executive Vice President Newspapers
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2000 was a record year for Schibsted’s newspapers, with operating profits
totalling NOK 450 million, mainly due to a strong advertising market.
Despite the market trend, VG increased its circulation and strengthened its
market position, along with Aftonbladet. Aftenposten’s readership is increasing, even though there has been a slight decline in circulation. Svenska
Dagbladet is in a turnaround process. Schibsted’s Internet focus is stronger
than ever, and every month there are 4.5 million readers of the Group’s
online newspapers. 20 Minutes has already become a strong brand name,
and is already a popular newspaper in Switzerland.
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Schibsted’s newspapers in Norway and Sweden are
among the strongest brand names in Scandinavia.
But the newspapers are not just traditional media.
They are also crucial elements of Schibsted’s strategy
for achieving success in the new media:
• Strong positions have been established. VG
and Aftonbladet have succeeded in their focus
on new media. Aftonbladet.se is the most read
online newspaper in Sweden and one of the l
argest in Europe. The newspapers are also developing new content services targeted at a number of areas, including web TV, radio and mobile
telephones.
• The newspapers are important building bricks.
Schibsted’s newspapers are in the process of
changing from being newspaper companies to
becoming multimedia companies. Existing products are being developed and new ones are
being launched. Revenues are being generated
from both the traditional and the new economy.

• The strategy will not be changed because of short-term changes in the market.
2000 was the year when the media world was supposed to change. Online advertising revenues and e-commerce were supposed to rocket. Many predicted the
imminent death of the traditional newspaper. Instead, it was the many Internet
companies that faced major difficulties. 2000 was the year when the traditional
media companies used their experience, position and market strength to establish
businesses in new channels. A good illustration is Aftenposten’s focus on classified
ads on the Internet at FINN.no.
Circulation per 1 000 inhabitants

Record operating profits
Verdens Gang and Aftonbladet both posted their best results ever, strengthening
their position in relation to competitors. 2000 was Aftenposten’s best advertising
year ever, mainly because of Aftenposten’s strong position in the important job ads
and property segments, and helped by positive national economic developments in
both Norway and Sweden.
2000 was the first full year of operations for avis1, and in a short space of time
it has become Norway’s 9th largest newspaper. It has been a winner in the advertising market in Oslo. The regional newspapers partly owned by Schibsted also posted
generally good results. In total, 2000 was a record year in this business area, with
operating revenues up 9% and operating revenues before goodwill and other revenues
and expenses of NOK 450 million. Continuous product development is necessary if
we are to maintain our strong position in the market for readers. The largest and
most visible change took place when Svenska Dagbladet switched to a tabloid format on 16th November 2000. The newspaper’s launch of a new business supplement
- ”Näringsliv” - was also a considerable undertaking. Aftonbladet carried out major
editorial changes in 2000, the most obvious being the restructuring of the news section, the launch of a sports supplement as a separate section, and the re-launch of
the Sunday edition. Scanpix is now one of the largest picture agencies in Europe,
both measured by turnover and the size of its photo archives.

Source: WAN 2000
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Lower circulation
No inhabitants of any nation read more newspapers than the Norwegians. Aftenposten
experienced a decline in circulation in 2000, although the number of readers is higher
than ever before. Aftonbladet and Svenska Dagbladet also report a decline in circulation, although Svenska Dagbladet experienced a positive trend in November and
December. The exception is VG which continues to report a rising circulation, at a time
when its main competitor and other newspapers are experiencing the opposite.
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20 Minutes attracts new readers
Free newspapers are a major area of attention for Schibsted. International surveys
show that the 20 Minutes concept, with the distribution of newspapers to people on
their way to work or school, results in new reading habits. It is especially gratifying
that the newspaper is attracting readers who would otherwise not buy newspapers,
thereby increasing overall newspaper consumption. In 2000, 20 Minutes launched
new newspapers in Bern and Basel and in just one year it has become the secondlargest newspaper in Switzerland.
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Schibsted’s printing plants
After a difficult start in 1999, Schibsted Trykk achieved greater regularity and better
quality in 2000. But in January 2001 a labour conflict arose which resulted in illegal
actions at Schibsted Trykk. The cost of the conflict was in the order of NOK 20-30
million. The Union of Graphic Workers has given a commitment to do its utmost to
ensure that situations of this kind do not occur again. However, if there is a recurrence, Schibsted will demand compensation for its losses.
For Tidningstryckarna, 2000 was a year of operational adaptation following several major investment projects. In Estonia, Kroonpress established a leading market
position in the course of the year.

Distribution of Revenues
(NOK)
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Press policy at the millennium
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Newspapers are important bearers of culture in society. No other medium has such a
strong influence on the language culture as the newspapers. They also play a major
role in the formation of public opinion and in creating social awareness and involvement. 2000 was a year of debate concerning the exercise of public policy in relation
to the press, both in Sweden and Norway. In Sweden, the closure of the newspaper
Arbetet gave rise to a debate on the future of press subsidies. In Norway, Norwegian
Public Report 2000 : 15 ”Press Policy at the Millennium” was presented, and Schibsted
has the same views as the committee which prepared the report concerning the
importance of ensuring that the operating conditions for the press must be of a
long-term and predictable nature. Schibsted is also pleased to note that there was no
political support for any of the controversial proposals, such as VAT on newspaper, a
tax on advertising, a reduction in press subsidies, a ban on telephone sales and the
prohibition of advertising inserts. We believe that this is an indication of political
acceptance of the need to maintain a diverse newspaper industry, as well as a continuation of the high level of quality that characterises the newspapers in Norway.
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Aftenposten
In 2000 Aftenposten strengthened its position as the main marketplace for advertisement in Norway. With an editorial product of the highest quality and one of
Norway’s strongest brand names, Aftenposten is very well placed to secure its position as an important source of information in the years to come.
Distribution of Advertising Revenues Aftenposten

Best advertising year ever

Brand/
Display

39%
61%

Classified

2000 was Aftenposten’s best advertising year ever. Classified advertising revenues
from the recruitment and property sectors have never been higher. In addition to the
eventuality of an economic recession, the main threat to Aftenposten’s advertising
sales is a transition to new advertising channels. 2000 was the year when
Aftenposten used its market position and strength in the largest marketplaces to
establish positions in other channels than the traditional newspaper.

Circulation down – readership up
In common with other major subscription based newspapers, Aftenposten has had to
accept a decline in circulation. However, the readership – a major determinant of advertising revenues - is higher than ever. In 2000, the morning edition had 813 000 readers.
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By targeting product development at specific groups, Aftenposten has established a strong position among young people in the Oslo region. For some time, the
new section - OsloPuls - has come out as a supplement to Aftenposten’s Friday edition. The OsloPuls online service was launched at the start of September and it now
has 16 000 members.
The strengthening of the business coverage in the newspaper has created greater interest among readers, and this is reflected in positive feedback. Aftenposten enjoys sound
credibility in the market. A survey was carried out by the research institute Opinion, to
identify the media which people trusted most. In the newspaper’s core circulation area,
Oslo and Akershus, 46% of those interviewed said that they trusted Aftenposten most,
while the state owned national broadcaster, NRK, took second place with 33%.

New business areas
With effect from 1st January 2001 the activities of Aftenposten Multimedia were reorganised as a separate limited company. It is targeted on developing Aftenposten.no
as a separate business area, focused on improving the news service and building up
OsloPuls.no. There are plans to use the technology developed by OsloPuls.no in the
regional newspapers Adresseavisen, Bergens Tidende and Stavanger Aftenblad.
FINN.no, Aftenposten’s main instrument in the area of online classified advertising, strengthened its position in 2000 and is now poised to embark on a process of
internationalisation. The company is owned by Aftenposten and several leading regional newspapers and offers classified advertising on the Internet. In November 2000,
FINN.no had more page visits in the markets for jobs, property, cars and boats than
all of its largest competitors together.
“Mediearkivet” (The Media Archive) was also reorganised as a separate company,
and during the year it registered a number of new customers and sources for its
main product, A-tekst.
PrimeTime.net is the company which sells online advertising space for
Aftenposten. The business concept is to expand in new channels such as the Internet
by exploiting the strong brand name and quality which Aftenposten represents as an
established media enterprise.

Working environment
In 1998 Aftenposten adopted an ambitious cost-cutting programme, to be completed by May 2001. By cutting costs the company will be better equipped to meet the
challenges ahead, and the programme is proceeding as planned. Another priority
area is to develop the potential of our talented personnel and to recruit good managers from within our own ranks. In this respect, there will be a special emphasis on
recruiting and developing women in managerial positions.

FINN.no and Competitors – Unique Daily Visitors
(in 1000)
Source: Norsk Gallup
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Aftenposten makes you a bit brighter
In May, Aftenposten’s profile campaign for the morning edition ”Aftenposten makes
you a bit brighter” received the award for the world’s best advertising campaign for
newspapers with a circulation of between 150 000 and 300 000. The prize was presented by the International Newspaper Marketing Association and the American trade
magazine Editor & Publisher.
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Verdens Gang
2000 was another good year for Verdens Gang or VG in short. The paper recorded its
best results ever, with an increase in circulation, advertising volume and readership. There
was a strike during the national wage negotiations in the spring, and as a result VG was
unable to publish for five days. This cost the newspaper more than NOK 10 million.

More readers and higher advertising revenues
VG’s circulation increased by 2 400 to 376 000 on weekdays and by 5 400 to 313 000
on Sundays. The focus has been on the Saturday edition, where the number of
pages has been increased, but without changing the cover price. As a result, VG has
strengthened its position in relation to its main competitor and is now twice as big
as Dagbladet in terms of circulation. For the first time since 1995, VG was published
the day after Whitsunday. This was a success, both financially and in terms of circulation. The readership has also increased and VG now has 1 358 000 daily readers,
corresponding to 37% of the Norwegian population over 13 years of age. The
readers are spread evenly across the country, making VG a very suitable and much
used advertising channel for nationwide advertising campaigns.
After a rather slow start to the year, advertising revenues reached new heights in
the autumn, with sales in October exceeding the previous record set in September
1997, while the figures for November were even better. The rise in advertising revenues was mainly due to higher prices and not higher volumes.
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Verdens Gang

VG – a multimedia company
VG Multimedia celebrated its 5th anniversary on 1 October 2000, and in December
VG.no was Norway’s largest online newspaper with 832 000 unique users a week. This
was 40% more than its nearest rival. The traditional paper edition and the online edition are facing very different challenges. Due to this fact, VG.no was reorganised as a
separate company – VG Multimedia AS - with effect from 1 June 2000.
VG’s record results and the increase in circulation, readers and advertising volume
could not have been achieved without the untiring efforts of the employees. During the
year, there was a focus on organisational development, with the emphasis on creativity
and innovation. The success of this initiative was reflected in the award of a number of
prizes and distinctions to VG and its employees in 2000, including the Goldfish award
for the best commercial and the Children’s Award in The World Press Photo.

Dagbladet

Online Newspapers in Norway
(number of readers in 1000 per day)
Source: Norsk Gallup
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Aftonbladet Hierta
In 2000 Aftonbladet recorded the best result in the newspaper’s 170-year history.
The good performance was mainly due to higher advertising revenues, an increase in
the price of the newspaper supplements, and a one-off refund of pension payment
from the insurance company SPP.

Continuous product development strengthens position
There has been made several improvements of the newspaper in 2000. Among the
more obvious changes were reorganisation of the news section, the launch of a daily
sports supplement, and the re-launch of the Sunday edition. On an aggregate basis,
Aftonbladet’s daily circulation fell by 4 000 to 390 000, but its share of the casual
sales market rose to 49% for the year as a whole. In November 2000 Aftonbladet
had more than 50% of the casual sales market in Sweden, and its circulation was
8 000 ahead of the combined figure for the three newspapers belonging to its main
rival, Bonnier (Expressen, GT and Kvällsposten).
Aftonbladet is read by more people in Stockholm in the afternoon than any
other newspaper, despite the fact that two free newspapers were launched in
Stockholm in 2000.

Aftonbladet Nya Medier
A year ago, Aftonbladet Nya Medier was reorganised as a separate company in order
to provide the necessary freedom of action and to increase the focus on the new
business. Aftonbladet’s position as the market leader in online news coverage has
been further strengthened, with 668 000 people visiting the online newspaper in
December 2000. Aftonbladet Nya Medier also spearheads Schibsted’s activities aimed
at maintaining its leading position in the new media channels.

Circulation of Swedish Casual Sales
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Hierta Venture
Aftonbladet was one of the first to invest in Internet companies, with the establishment
of Hierta Venture in 1999. 2000 was a turbulent year, but within the industry Hierta
Venture was one of the companies that did best. After 18 months’ operations the company’s revenues were at a level providing the Group with a sound cash flow. The business is now entering a new phase based on close collaboration with the Schibsted
owned European Media Ventures (EMV). Hierta Venture will still be a wholly owned
subsidiary of Aftonbladet Hierta AB, but its investments will be managed by EMV.

Aftonbladet’s employees – a success factor
Aftonbladet’s employees and their untiring efforts are the main determinants of the
newspaper’s success. Further development of employee skills has been a main priority,
and will continue to be so. For the third successive year Aftonbladet won the highest
journalistic award of excellence ”Stora Journalistpriset”, with the prize in 2000 going
to the online editorial team.
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Svenska Dagbladet
Distribution of Advertising Revenues Print
and Online Newspapers
(NOK million)
1 600

1 280

960

640

320

0
Aftenposten
Print

VG
Online

Aftonbladet

Svenska
Dagbladet

The results posted by Svenska Dagbladet have been on a downward spiral for several
years, but steps are now in hand to reverse the negative trend. The biggest change in
the company’s history took place on 16th November 2000 when Svenska Dagbladet
change to a tabloid format.
At the start of the year Svenska Dagbladet appointed a completely new editorial
team with Hannu Olkinuora taking over as Editor-in-Chief, while Mats Johansson
became political Editor-in-Chief and Gunnar Strömblad took up the position of
managing director. The new team and the employees are focused on bringing the
company into profit, after press subsidies, by 2002 at the latest. The next target is to
generate profits without press subsidies. A cost-cutting programme has been implemented, aimed at saving SEK 80 million. This includes a 20% reduction in manpower,
and the programme is proceeding as planned. Advertising revenues for the paper
edition increased by 12% to SEK 515 million, as a result of an economic upswing and
intensified market work. In 2000, Svenska Dagbladet had a weekday circulation of
176 000 against 178 000 in 1999. The circulation rose towards the end of the year.

New business supplement
A number of radical changes were made to Svenska Dagbladet in 2000. The new
business supplement ”Näringsliv” was launched in February. This was done in cooperation with 30 regional newspapers which cover most of the country, and which
now offer ”Näringsliv” to their subscribers for an additional charge. The supplement
has been well received by the readers and advertising revenues have been at a good
level. However, the inflow of new subscribers in the regions has been lower than
expected and steps are being taken to improve the situation.

Switch to tabloid format
Last autumn, following a thorough analysis, it was decided to publish the newspaper
in tabloid format. Svenska Dagbladet is now published in three sections – News,
Culture and Business. The changes was motivated by a wish to make the newspaper
more reader-friendly and to be appealing to younger readers. It is still too early to
say whether this has succeeded, but the initial response has been positive. The decline
in circulation in the summer and autumn seems to have been reversed, and the
inflow of adverts is at a good level. A SIFO survey carried out immediately after the
launch showed that 76% of the readers thought that the new format was better, or
much better, than the old one.

Pressens Morgentjänst
A prolonged dispute between Dagens Nyheter and Svenska Dagbladet concerning
ownership of the distribution company Pressens Morgontjänst has now been resolved.
At the start of 2001 Svenska Dagbladet bought a 50% shareholding in the company,
giving control of a company that is of great strategic importance for the newspaper,
while at the same time reducing distribution costs.
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20 Minutes
20 Minutes is a media concept developed by Schibsted. Currently it consists of a free
newspaper and an online newspaper, but the intention is to develop content services
for other platforms, such as mobile telephones. The newspaper is published five days
a week and provides the readers with local, national and international news, as well
as a broad range of information about entertainment, sport and cultural events. 20
Minutes is targeted at young people who, to a large exetent, are not regular newspaper readers, but who will read a quality newspaper when they get it free of charge
on their way to work, school or university. Through advertuising in the newspaper
edition the readers are encouraged to use 20 Minutes actively on the Internet. So
far, the newspaper has been launched in Zürich, Bern, Basel and Cologne.
In the autumn of 2000 APAX Europe IV became an investor in 20 Minutes with
an investment of EUR 50 million. At the same time the current owners, Schibsted
and the Swiss investment bank A&A Group invested an additional EUR 22 million and
EUR 5 million, respectively. The additional capital will be sufficient to carry out the
planned expansion. At year-end, Schibsted owned 41.4% of 20 Minutes Holding AG,
A&A Group 29.3%, APAX Europe IV 27.8% and the company’s management 1.5%.
The circulation in Zürich, Bern and Basel stands at 160 000, 80 000 and 70 000,
respectively. On average, each newspaper has 1.7 readers. Together the editions in
the three cities make it the second-largest newspaper in Switzerland. The online edition, www.20min.ch, soon became one of the most popular online newspapers in
Switzerland.
In Cologne, around 110 000 copies of 20 Minutes are distributed on the city’s
subway and tramway network. German competitors have tried to have publication
of the newspaper halted in the courts, but so far 20 Minutes has won the main
cases. In Cologne, 20 Minutes is the most read newspaper in the age group 14-29.
The free newspaper concept is in constant development, and the launch of 20
Minutes in other cities is being considered. In Zürich the newspaper is approaching
break even, but on an overall basis 20 Minutes Holding AG had an operating loss of
EUR 22 million in 2000. The objective is for each newspaper to become profitable
approximately 24 months after launch.

avis1
Since the launch of avis1 on 16th April 1999 the newspaper has been published in
Oslo and Akershus every Wednesday and Friday with a circulation of 198 000. The
newspaper strengthened its market position in 2000, in terms of both readership
and advertising revenues. Reader surveys carried out by “Forbruker & Media” show
that avis1 has already become Norway’s 9th largest newspaper. A combination of
advertising in avis1 and Aftenposten’s evening edition gives total market coverage in
Oslo, and this advertising package has been a success in the market.
The newspaper’s accounting results cannot be considered in isolation. Rather than
have its own advertising department, it leaves sales to Aftenposten. The loss in 2000
amounted to roughly NOK 46 million, but at Group level the loss was in the order of
NOK 12-14 million because of the positive effect of coordinated advertising for
Aftenposten.

20 Minutes Zürich
Readers in 1000 (Total 975 000)
Source: MA Zürich 2000/
MACH Basic 2000
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Schibsted Trykk
Schibsted Trykk prints newspapers for Aftenposten, Verdens Gang and avis1. After a
problematic start in 1999, the company achieved greater regularity and better quality, especially in the second half of 2000. This was a consequence of systematic steps
taken to improve equipment and technology and the introduction of a training programme on the production side.
However, a labour conflict arose at Schibsted Trykk in January 2001. At issue was
disagreement concerning a plan to reduce the level of overtime. The management
proposed that this should be done through changes in manpower agreements, but
without redundancies or changes in wages or working hours. This was not acceptable to the Union of Graphic Workers and the resulting conflict led to action that
was both unlawful and in contravention of agreements, and which seriously affected
newspaper production. As a result, large parts of Aftenposten’s circulation failed to
appear and the production of VG was delayed. Schibsted’s loss as a result of the
conflict amounted to NOK 20-30 million. The conflict was resolved after one week,
and the Union of Graphic Workers admitted that the production problems were based
actions which were both unlawful and in contravention of national wage agreements.
The Union of Graphic Workers has given a commitment to do its utmost to ensure
that situations of this kind do not occur again. However, if there is a recurrence,
Schibsted will demand compensation for its losses.
Schibsted Trykk ran at a loss in 2000, mainly due to the high level of overtime,
the strike in May and substantial outlays to get production equipment to function
satisfactorily.
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Tidningstryckarna

N E W S P A P E R S - O P E R AT I N G R E S U LT

Tidningstryckarna Aftonbladet Svenska Dagbladet AB is jointly owned by the two
newspapers. The printing plant is located at Akalla, north of Stockholm. Tidningstryckarna celebrated its 10th anniversary in 2000 and the year was one of operational
adaptation on the completion of several major investment projects along with
restructuring of the business.
Taken together, the volume of contracts for Aftonbladet and Svenska Dagbladet
was at the same level as in 1999, but printing assignments for external customers
were scarce in the spring, and this resulted in greater competition and pressure on
prices. The market improved after the summer, partly due to the higher level of activity in connection with material needed for the Olympics, but mostly because of the
launch of several new free newspapers in Stockholm. This was one of the main
reasons for the increase in revenues in 2000.
2000 saw further upgrading of colouring capacity, mainly to meet Aftonbladet’s
requirements. There is a continuing focus on daily newspapers, magazines and printed
material, and the number of printing agreements made this year is currently ahead
of last year’s corresponding figure.

(NOK million)
Circulation revenues
Casual sales revenues
Advertising revenues
Other revenues
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result before goodwill and
other revenues and expenses
GW and other revenues and expenses
Operating result
Share of associated companies
Operating margin %

Scanpix Scandinavia
At the end of 2000 Scanpix was one of the largest picture agencies in Europe, measured by both turnover and the size of its photo archives. Scanpix aims to be the
leading picture agency group in Scandinavia, with a strong focus on innovation and
new technology. Schibsted today has a 76% shareholding in Scanpix Scandinavia.
In 2000 an agreement was made with Det Berlingske Officin A/S to establish Scanpix
Nordfoto Danmark A/S. Scanpix Scandinavia AB has a minority holding of 49% in the
new company, while the remaining 51% is owned by Det Berlingske Officin A/S. At the
same time, Det Berlingske Officin acquired a 15% holding in Scanpix Scandinavia.
On 1st April 2000 Picturegate AB was registered as a wholly owned subsidiary of
Scanpix Scandinavia. The company will be developed into an Internet portal capable
of communicating photographs from the digital archives of collaborating international
agencies to end-users using technology developed by the company itself. The business
started up early in 2001.

2000
865
2 476
2 787
509
6 637
(6 187)

1999
862
2 379
2 372
471
6 084
(5 762)

450
13
463
(93)
6.8

322
(148)
174
(28)
5.3

2000
624
1 478
133
2 235
(2 073)
162
7.2
935

1999
631
1 325
119
2 074
(1933)
141
6.8
958

2000
1 173
382
16
1 571
(1 263)
308
19.6
486

1999
1 140
331
9
1 480
(1 222)
258
17.4
489

Operating result Aftenposten AS
(NOK million)
Circulation revenues
Advertising revenues
Other revenues
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result
Operating margin %
Number of employees
Operating result Verdens Gang AS
(NOK million)
Casual sales revenues
Advertising revenues
Other revenues
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result
Operating margin %
Number of employees

Operating result Aftonbladet Hierta Group
(SEK million)
Circulation revenues
Advertising revenues
Other revenues
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result
Operating margin %
Number of employees

2000
1 284
377
24
1 685
(1 526)
159
9.4
488

1999
1 235
266
109
1 610
(1 559)
51
3.1
463

Operating result Aftonbladet Nya Medier
(SEK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result
Operating margin %
Number of employees

2000
90
(98)
(8)
(8.7)
56

1999
46
(36)
10
21.2
42

The figures are also included in Aftonbladet Hierta Group’s operating result.
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Operating result Schibsted Trykk

Operating result Svenska Dagbladet Group
(SEK million)
Circulation revenues
Advertising revenues
Other revenues
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result
Operating margin %
Number of employees

2000
328
532
73
933
(1 031)
(98)
(10.5)
479

1999
326
461
81
868
(1 017)
(149)
(17.2)
508

2000
31
(75)
(44)
(12)
(138.9)
25

1999
15
(52)
(37)
(15)
(237.6)
23

Operating result avis1
(NOK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result
Result effect for Schibsted Group
Operating margin %
Number of employees

Operating result Schibsted's Online Newspapers
(NOK million)
Advertising revenues
Total operating revenues
Total operating expenses 2)
Operating result

2000
181
195
(282)
(87)

1)

1999
69
80
(130)
(50)

The numbers are also included in the respective newspapers result.
1) Including FINN and the newspapers' venture activities.
2) Include all costs except editorial content.

Operating result 20 Minutes
(NOK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result
Operating margin %
Number of employees
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2000
65
(295)
(230)

1999
-

(353.9)
120

-

(NOK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result

2000
696
(708)
(12)

1999
627
(753)
(126)

Operating margin %
Number of employees

(1.7)
309

(20.0)
305

(SEK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result

2000
497
(487)
10

1999
470
(462)
8

Operating margin %
Number of employees

1.9
214

1.7
215

2000
125
(118)
7

1999
96
(93)
3

5.7
96

3.5
96

2000
96.09

1999
94.37

Operating result Tidningstryckarna

Operating result Scanpix Scandinavia
(SEK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result
Operating margin %
Number of employees
Exchange rate
SEK/NOK

Estonia

Eesti Meedia Group

O P E R AT I N G R E S U LT E S T O N I A

In 2000 Eesti Meedia strengthened its position as the leading media group in Estonia.
Eesti Meedia is the only media group which includes newspapers, magazines, local
newspapers, television and the Internet. During the year the printing plant Kroonpress
established a position as the market leader.
In May 2000 Eesti Meedia and Ekspress Group established jointly owned companies to publish casual sales newspapers and magazines. The two casual sales newspapers Sõnumileht and Õhtuleht were merged to form SL Õhtuleht. In 1999 the two
newspapers ran at a loss of EEK 35 million, while the new paper has operated at a
profit from the very start. The new magazine company publishes 18 magazines,
giving it a total market share of 75%.
Eesti Meedia’s largest newspaper, Postimees, increased its leading position ahead
of its main rival, Eesti Päevaleht, in the morning newspaper market. In September
Postimees started full and free distribution of the newspaper in Tallinn once a week, as
a result of which Postimees became the market leader there too, with 109 000 readers.
In the autumn Postimees Online was started to strengthen its position in new
media areas.
The printing plant Kroonpress doubled its turnover in 1999 and 2000 and now
prints 70% of the total circulation of newspapers in Estonia. In November
Kroonpress purchased a new printing press in order to improve its magazine printing
service and attract foreign customers.
Restructuring of Eesti Meedia has reduced the workforce from 921 to 624 fulltime employees. The company aims to be profitable in 2001.

(EEK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result before goodwill and
other operating revenues and expenses
GW and other revenues and expenses
Operating result
Share of associated companies
Operating margin %
Exchange rate EEK/NOK

2000
198
(218)

1999
194
(226)

(20)
(19)
(39)

(32)
(18)
(50)

(10.1)

(16.5)

0.52

0.53

Kanal 2
Kanal 2 is one of the largest commercial television channels in Estonia, and Schibsted
Eesti has a 96.4% shareholding in the company. Financially, 2000 was a difficult year
for Kanal 2, due to the recession in the country and the fierce competition in the
Estonian television market. Kanal 2 has a broad range of programmes, with the
emphasis on entertainment and current affairs.
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tv • film • publishing
«The adventures of Baron von Münchhausen», one of the great classics in the art of storytelling, was the second book to be published by the
Schibsted’s founder Chr. Schibsted at the start in 1840. In today’s media world, where technological change is the order of the day, one thing
still remains the same: a good story that captures the imagination of the public is as much in demand ever. As the 21st century starts,
Schibsted TV, Film & Publishing will be aiming to create value by doing just this: telling and communicating a good story – in living pictures
and living text.

TV, Film & Publishing

..................................

..................................

..................................

..............................................
......................

Jan Erik Knarbakk

Executive Vice President TV, Film & Publishing

.................

.................

.................
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...................................................

........................................................................................................
2000 was a very successful and prosperous year for Schibsted TV, Film &
Publishing. With aggregate revenues in excess of NOK 1 billion, the TV/Film
sector experienced overall growth of 52% and a sharp rise in profitability.
It was also a remarkable year for the Group’s production companies, with
new records in both revenues and profits. At the same time, the associated
company TV 2 reported its highest profits ever. As a group, the Schibsted
publishing companies also made good progress in terms of revenues and
profits. The companies which make up this business area are thus well
placed to meet new challenges.
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2000 was a year when Schibsted, as an independent television producer, greatly increased the
distance to its main competitors in the Nordic
area. In 1999 the Group’s production companies
were already the largest independent supplier of
programmes to television channels in
Scandinavia, as well as being a producer of feature films and commercials. At the end of 2000, the
Schibsted companies were twice the size of their
closest competitors, measured by revenues.
The focus on television and film has been an
important part of the Group’s overall strategy.
The establishment of a strong Scandinavian position as a provider of content on the television
film side has been a declared goal ever since
Schibsted started its first production company in
Norway in 1993. This goal has now been realised.
At the same time it has been important to
ensure that the Group has the expertise needed in
the TV/film sector in a longer perspective. In the
kaleidoscope of different media which the users
are also gradually starting to come to terms with,
living pictures will undoubtedly play a major role.
Television has long since shown its strength
both as a source of information and entertainment, and as a marketing medium, and it is likely
that it will continue to attract increasing numbers of viewers and advertisers in the years ahead.
The market for content from the independent
producers has grown in pace with advances made
by the commercial television channels in the
Nordic area. The state-owned channels have, at
length, also realised that in an increasingly commercialised industry they do not have a complete
monopoly on all creativity. The market for the
independent producers is still growing.
At the same time, the digitalisation process in
the television sector is well under way. Web-TV has
emerged as a new media. The broadband network
is being put in place. Increased television competition with more channels, also through the Internet,
means a tougher fight for quality content. There
will be an increase in both the demand for national productions and the right to use international
film material. New media, such as the third generation mobile telephone network, will also make

increasing demands for living pictures. And the final determinant of success for all the
new distribution platforms will be the quality of the content they provide.
The aim of the Schibsted companies in the TV/film sector is to further strengthen
their position, both as a provider of television programmes and as an intermediary
for the presentation of Nordic and international feature films through the channels
that are currently of commercial interest. At the same time, the Schibsted TV/film
companies are actively involved in producing and testing content concepts and formats adapted to the new media. The spearhead expertise which the Group has in
the television and film sector in all the Nordic countries is a powerful weapon in the
competition for users of the visual media of today and tomorrow.
Frontline expertise is also central to developments for Schibsted’s publishing
companies. Through a number of acquisitions and organic growth these companies
have become a group of specialised units whose very expertise and creativity have
shown that they are able to succeed in the marketplace.
Schibsted’s publishing companies are currently active in Norway, Sweden and Poland.
Their revenues are likely to exceed NOK 300 million in 2001, in total a respectable
amount in the Norwegian publishing industry.
Schibsted’s publishing businesses are targeted on further growth and better profitability. This will be achieved by nurturing the publishing specialities in areas where
the companies are already involved, and by adding new niche areas. The Group is a
co-owner of Bladcentralen which runs the most extensive distribution system for
magazines and popular literature in Norway. The aim is to make increasing use of
this distribution network.
As part of the development of the Schibsted Group’s publishing business, the
aim is to bring the publishing units into closer proximity in the course of 2001. This
will facilitate more efficient utilisation of common resources among companies
which have much in common. It is also the intention that at the same time the individual companies will be able to nurture and develop their individuality and their
specialities - and run their publishing businesses profitably.

Metronome Film & Television
Through a major programme of expansion in 2000 the Metronome Film & Television
group has strengthened Schibsted’s position as the largest independent
Scandinavian television production company. The group improved its market position
in all the Nordic countries, and profitability rose substantially. As providers of living
picture content, the Schibsted-dominated production companies have now become
the power centre which was the group’s stated objective.
The 13 production companies in Norway, Sweden, Denmark and Finland which
make up the Metronome Film & Television group increased turnover by 107% in
2000. The operating margin was 9%, and the operating profit reflected an improvement of no less than 297% on 1999. Measured by total turnover, the Metronome
Film & Television group is roughly twice the size of its closest competitor.
The growth and improved profits are the result of the creative quality of the
national production companies and increasingly efficient utilisation of the group’s
overall production resources and technology. The highest standard of television and
film expertise has been developed in all the Scandinavian countries and combined

Market Shares Scandinavian TV and Film Production
Companies by Operating Revenues
Metronome
Film & Television
25%

Others
36%

11%
Jarowski
5%

6%
6%

11%
Bonnier

MTG
Nordisk Film

MTV
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with a demonstrated ability to handle demanding formats and productions. Some of
the best Norwegian, Swedish and Danish television and film producers currently
work for companies of the Metronome Film & Television group. The group’s parent
company and head office are in Stockholm.
The customer base increased in 2000. The national production companies, such
as Meter and Mekano in Sweden, Rubicon and Metronome Spartacus in Norway
and Metronome Productions in Denmark, have become large, well-known suppliers
to both state-owned and commercial television channels. The group’s companies are
now providers of content to virtually all of the Scandinavian TV companies.
The Metronome Film & Television companies experienced a substantial increase
in the number of drama productions for both the television and the cinema in 2000.
A contract was signed with SBS Broadcasting covering the production of up to 850
episodes of the drama series ”Hotel Seger” to be shown on Swedish Kanal 5 over a
five-year period. ”Hotel Seger” is a Swedish version of the successful Norwegian
series ”Hotel Cæsar”, with 525 episodes produced for TV 2 by the end of 2000. The
contract with TV 2 is one of the largest ever made in European television and covers
a total of 900 episodes. Talks have started with SBS aimed at collaboration on production of the ”Big Brother” series in Sweden, Denmark and Norway. ”Big Brother” is
a concept for both television and the Internet and has been developed and is owned
by Endemol Entertainment which itself is one of the largest TV producers in the world
and one of Metronome Film & Television’s minority shareholders. Metronome Film &
Television has the sole right to produce Endemol’s formats for the Nordic market.
Along with the television channels Metronome Film & Television started on the
process of utilising its rights to the various productions, including the establishment
of a number of rights companies with a view to commercial exploitation of online
sites, e-commerce, CD issues and similar. Part of this process is the sale of specially
edited content to Internet Service Providers. This activity has been a success and is
making good progress.
At the start of 2000 Metronome Film & Television acquired 60% of the Swedish
production company Filmlance International, a recognised producer of feature films
and television dramas. Towards the end of the year Metronome Film & Television Oy
was established in Helsinki through the purchase of a Finnish production company.
The outlook for the Metronome Film & Television group in 2001 is good, and
bookings of production resources are already at a satisfactory level.

Sandrew Metronome
No other entertainment medium is able to attract and delight so many people, and to
such a degree, as the feature film. A good story told in the unique language of film continues to spellbind the public, whatever the channel of distribution. In only a few years,
through Sandrew Metronome, Schibsted has built up a strong Nordic position to supply
films through the existing distribution platforms and those that will come tomorrow.
The Sandrew Metronome group made good progress in 2000, with a 6% rise in
revenues and 16% growth in operating profit. The group, which was set up in 1998
and is owned on a 50/50 by Schibsted and the Swedish Anders Sandrews
Foundation, already has a major presence in the Nordic area in its areas of activity.
Sales revenues could exceed SEK 1 billion in 2001.
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Sandrew Metronome’s business concept is to hold, buy and manage feature
rights for all the present and future forms of distribution. The group’s parent company and head office are located in Stockholm. It has national subsidiaries in
Norway, Sweden, Denmark and Finland, and at the end of 2000 the group held the
rights to around 900 feature films, of which roughly 400 were Scandinavian.
Sandrew Metronome had an operating margin of 4% in 2000, and the company
is well placed to improve profitability, through further rationalisation and expansion
in both the traditional and the new channels of distribution.
The Sandrew Metronome group has built up powerful and competitive centres of
expertise, both centrally and nationally, in its areas of activity - the acquisition of
film rights, film distribution to the cinema and video markets, sales to television
channels, and cinema operations. The company is well positioned to benefit from the
exploitation of rights on new viewing platforms as they gradually become more
commercially interesting.
2000 was a year of relatively strong growth in another of Sandrew Metronome’s
business areas - the video sector. DVD is now making serious inroads in the Nordic
area, and it is expected to acquire even greater prevalence in the coming years. This
is an area where Sandrew Metronome is the undisputed market leader in the Nordic
countries. All the signs are that DVD will replace the video in the course of a few
years, offering great potential for new commercial exploitation of existing rights.
With 141 cinemas in 30 cities in three countries, Sandrew Metronome can guarantee that the films for which it has the rights will be launched and shown in cinemas in the Nordic area. This is of importance for the company’s attractiveness as a
buyer in both the international and the Nordic rights market, and for the re-sale of
rights to the video and television markets, and to other viewing formats.
Sandrew Metronome works closely with the American film company Warner,
which is part of AOL-Time Warner. In 2000, Sandrew Metronome took over Warner’s
video distribution in Sweden, as the last of the Nordic countries, and now Sandrew
Metronome is responsible for all distribution of Warner’s films in the cinema, video
and DVD markets throughout the Nordic area.
In 2000, Sandrew Metronome’s portfolio of new films included the rights to and
distribution of just as many of its own titles as the number of Warner productions. Of
the 20 or so of its own titles, there were several which attracted particular attention.
”Dancer in the Dark”, made by the well known Danish producer Lars von Trier, won the
Gold Palm at the Cannes Film Festival, while the Swedish film ”Tilsammans” was a success both at the box-office and among the Scandinavian critics. In Norway, Sandrew
Metronome was responsible for the distribution of the film ”Detektor”, uniformly
acclaimed by the press as the most positive innovation of the year in Norwegian film.
The Nordic TV channels and Pay-TV will continue to be important viewing platforms
for feature films. The development of the broadband network and steps being taking to
increase the accessibility of Video on Demand represent new viewing potential for the
Group’s films, and within a few years this is likely to be an important market.
The level of cinema attendance is expected to rise in all the Nordic countries.
New multiplex cinemas are being built by both Nordic and international players. In
2001, Sandrew Metronome will be opening new cinemas in Åbo in Finland and at
Lyngby outside Copenhagen.
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TV 2

O P E R AT I N G R E S U LT T V / F I L M
(NOK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result before goodwill and
other revenues and expenses
GW and other revenues and expenses
Operating result
Share of associated companies

2000
1 076
(998)

1999
709
(677)

78
(12)
66
77

32
(24)
8
(11)

7.3

4.5

Operating margin %

Operating result Metronome Film & Television
(SEK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result

2000
666
(605)
61

1999
321
(306)
15

Operating margin %
Number of employees

9.1
402

4.7
231

(SEK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result

2000
913
(880)
33

1999
864
(835)
29

Operating margin %
Number of employees

3.6
378

3.3
368

2000
1512
(1274)
238

1999
1356
(1213)
143

Operating margin %
Number of employees

15.7
647

10.6
600

Exchange rate
SEK/NOK

2000
96.09

1999
94.37

Operating result Sandrew Metronome1)

1)

Schibsted consolidates 50% of the result

Operating result TV 2 Group
(SEK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result

34 t v / f i l m / p u b l i s h i n g

TV 2 is one of the strongest media brand names in Norway, and 76% of the population have expressed confidence in the channel. After eight years, TV 2 has long since
established its position as Norway’s largest commercial television channel and as a
national broadcaster with a growing audience. The results achieved in 2000 were the
best ever recorded by the TV 2 group.
Norway was the last Scandinavian country, and one of last in Europe, to renounce the concept of a state television monopoly. TV 2 has played a major role in the
development of Norwegian television. The establishment of a strong news service as
an alternative to the state-owned NRK has influenced both the way news is communicated and public debate. TV 2’s own programme requirements have served as an
important basis for the growth of the Norwegian production environment. The market for TV commercials has developed in pace with TV 2’s increasing position as a
nationwide channel.
The annual accounts for 2000 confirm that TV 2 is strong, still growing and profitable: the commercial television market made good progress throughout the year,
and TV 2’s revenues rose by 12%. The channel has increased its share of the market
for the commercially attractive age group from 12 to 49, making TV 2 Norway’s largest
television channel by far in this area. The operating margin stood at 16% in 2000.
After including gains on the sale of financial items, TV 2’s share of the loss posted by
TVNorge and other losses, the TV 2 group had an operating margin of 14%. An increasing focus on Internet-based activities has had no appreciable effect of the results.
Schibsted owns 33.3% of TV 2, making it one of the Group’s associated companies. The Norwegian authorities have placed restrictions on the ownership of TV 2,
and Schibsted’s shareholding is the largest that is permitted.
Schibsted has been an owner of TV 2 since the start and was a key driving force
in the establishment of the company 10 years ago. Under its present strategy, the
Schibsted Group’s core activities require the company to have strategic control or to
be involved on a joint venture partnership basis. The shareholding in TV 2 is now
regarded as a financial investment.
Under the terms of its licence, TV 2 has the sole right to engage in nationwide
broadcasting financed through television advertising revenues. The licence expires at
the end of 2002. The process of renewing the licence is under way, but is has taken
more time than originally expected.
TV 2’s owners are agreed on preparing the company for a stock exchange listing.
However, no listing is possible until it is finally clarified that TV 2 will be licensed for
a new period and on acceptable terms, or that the company’s activities will continue
without a licence - which is also a realistic alternative.

Publishing

Bladkompaniet
An increased focus on core activities, books and cartoon series for a wide readership
led to very good results for Bladkompaniet in 2000. Bladkompaniet is Norway’s leading publisher of paperbacks, also publishing the works of several of the country’s
most well known writers of popular literature.
Bladkompaniet’s revenues increased by 4% in 2000 and a number of book series
were launched in the Norwegian, Swedish and Polish markets. At the same time, the
portfolio was reviewed and the number of low-profit products was reduced.
Schibsted took over Bladkompaniet in 1999, and the operating result in 2000
was a great improvement on the previous year. The Bladkompaniet group recorded
an operating margin of 10% and a profit margin of 13% before tax. The company’s
Norwegian publications are distributed through Bladcentralen, Norway’s leading distributor of popular literature. The company also operates in Sweden and Poland.
In the area of strip cartoons, Bladkompaniet won contracts to publish Warner’s
titles for the Norwegian and Swedish markets in 2000. An agreements was also signed with the American company FarWorks to publish Scandinavia’s largest humorous magazine, Larson, in the Norwegian and Swedish markets. These agreements
represent substantial strengthening of Bladkompaniet’s position as a publisher of
magazine series in a Scandinavian context.
2000 also saw the launch of the comic magazine ”Pondus” in Norway, which was
an instant success. Not long after the launch, ”Pondus” was the second-largest cartoon after Donald Duck.
Bladkompaniet is working closely with Schibsted Telecom on the possible distribution of cartoon series symbols to mobile telephones.
At the start of 2001 Schibsted, through Bladkompaniet, acquired the interior
design magazine Maison, one of the leading magazines of its kind in Norway. A
Swedish edition of Maison is also published.
Bladkompaniet forecasts growth of 4-5% in its market for books and magazines
in 2001, and is well placed to achieve further profitable grow.
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Chr. Schibsteds Forlag
Chr. Schibsteds Forlag has almost doubled its revenues in the last three years. It is now
one of Norway’s leading publishers of non-fiction and textbooks, publishing 46 new titles
in 2000 and making good progress in the highly competitive Norwegian book market.
Chr. Schibsteds Forlag is the oldest company of the Schibsted Group, with roots
going back to 1839. The present-day publishing house has gradually developed its
niche activity as a publisher of non-fiction material and has won recognition within
the printing industry, on the retail side and among the public for its profile and the
quality of its books.
The annual Schibsted publications ”Hvem Hva Hvor” and the ”Guinness Book of
Records” were again among the bookshops’ best-sellers in 2000. For the second year
in succession, Schibsted also published the most sold non-fiction book, apart from the
aforementioned, as represented by Siri M. Kalvig’s ”Vær og uvær”, of which 30 000 copies
were printed. Among the 17 authors on the company’s book list were seven debutants.
In addition to its Norwegian editions, Chr. Schibsteds Forlag has been increasing
its imports and sales of English-language books. The import department currently
stocks around 4 000 English-language titles, and accounted for half of the company’s
revenues in 2000. With an operating margin of 2% and after several years of increasing sales, the main goal in the period ahead is to improve profitability.
With effect from 1st January 2001 Schibsted Internasjonale Bøker has been reorganised as an associated company of the publishing house Chr. Schibsteds Forlag, as
an independent profit centre.
Chr. Schibsteds Forlag is increasing its focus on its core activity – the publication
of Norwegian books. The company’s editorial staff and management are dimensioned
for an annual publishing programme of between 40 and 60 Norwegian titles, and are
well placed to meet new challenges.

Dagens Medisin
Dagens Medisin is a specialised newspaper which focuses on health issues in
Norway, with doctors, dentists, pharmacists and nurses as its main target groups.
The paper was founded in the autumn of 1998 and is owned equally by Schibsted
and the publishing company Medicine Today International.
Dagens Medisin has a circulation of 17 300 in Norway, and it is only distributed
to the readers who make up its target groups. Dagens Medisin can therefore carry
adverts for prescription medicines, and it is financed through advertising revenues.
All doctors in Norway receive the newspaper free of charge.
Dagens Medisin effectively illustrates the point that a publication can be distributed
free of charge to its readers without any necessary loss of quality or credibility compared
with newspapers which carry a charge. Readership surveys show that more than 90% of
the readers say that they benefit professionally from reading Dagens Medisin. Dagens
Medisin is an often quoted source of health news on the TV and radio and in the dailies.
Naturally, Dagens Medisin is edited applying the same basic principles of journalism and
with the same editorial independence as any other Schibsted-owned newspaper.
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The printed edition of Dagens Medisin is published every other week, and it is
supplemented by an online edition dagensmedisin.no. Dagens Medisin is thus able to
update its readers on a daily basis, competing with other news media in its specialised area of activity.
2000 was the second full year of operations for Dagens Medisin. It has run at a
loss from the start, but Schibsted is confident that the performance will soon improve.

Dine Penger
The position of Dine Penger as Norway’s largest periodical on personal finance was
further strengthened in 2000. With personal finance as its trademark, Dine Penger
has acquired a large and broadly-based readership. In Norway, it occupies a central
position within its niche.
Dine Penger’s circulation has risen at a good, steady rate over the years, but the
growth in 2000 was exceptional. After its most extensive subscription campaign ever,
and followed by improvement in the casual sales distribution apparatus, the magazine’s
circulation increased by 30% in 2000 to more than 80 000.
There is no doubt that the magazine is acclaimed and has a great appeal. Nevertheless, the circulation growth in 2000 was so great that we must expect to see a
levelling off in 2001. But, in any event, Dine Penger has a remarkable position in its
market area.
The company’s revenues were 25% up on 1999, while the operating profit increased
by 39%, before goodwill amortisation. The operating margin before goodwill was 13%
and after goodwill 3%.
For several years, Dine Penger has provided a personal advisory service for its readers,
organised as a separate company. In 2000, this advisory service was merged with the
parent company, and this has resulted in better utilisation of the overall resources.
The magazine’s online service, Dine Penger Online, (dinepenger.no), has been greatly improved and is now provided in a new and broader form. The online business
will be reorganised as a separate subsidiary in which the employees will have a 9.9%
shareholding.

SMS Publishing
SMS Publishing is a Swedish publishing company which runs Svenska Förlaget, a book
club and an online bookshop.
Svenska Förlaget, which presented 31 new titles in 2000, publishes textbooks and
non-fiction literature, with a special focus on books dealing with business, management and personal development. Bokklubben Executive has the same profile as the
publishing company, while the online bookshop bokex.com offers a broad choice of
Swedish and foreign literature.
SMS Publishing has been owned by Schibsted since 1996. In 2000, the operating
margin was a creditable 20%, mainly due to a gain on disposal.
A restructuring programme was initiated at the start of 2001 in order to achieve
satisfactory profitability from operations.

O P E R AT I N G R E S U LT P U B L I S H I N G
(NOK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result before goodwill and
other revenues and expenses
GW and other revenues and expenses
Operating result
Share of associated companies

2000
277
(259)

1999
268
(260)

18
1
19
(3)

8
(16)
(8)
(3)

6.3

2.9

(NOK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result

2000
132
(119)
13

1999
127
(127)
0

Operating margin %
Number of employees

10.1
57

(0.3)
61

2000
68
(67)
1

1999
68
(68)
0

1.8
20

0.5
18

2000
49
(48)
1

1999
39
(39)
0

2.6
19

(0.7)
16

(NOK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result

2000
33
(26)
7

1999
28
(28)
0

Operating margin %
Number of employees

20.4
14

1.7
20

Operating margin %
Operating result Bladkompaniet Group

Operating result Chr. Schibsted's Forlag
(NOK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result
Operating margin %
Number of employees
Operating result Dine Penger
(NOK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result
Operating margin %
Number of employees
Operating result SMS Publishing Group
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multimedia
By the mid-90s Schibsted was already preparing to play a key role in the development of new media in Scandinavia. Today, the Schibsted Group
leads the field in online developments in the Nordic area, with more than 12 million visitors to Schibsted’s wholly or partly owned Internet sites in
December 2000. Regardless of the recent repricing of technology and media shares, Schibsted has an unshakeable conviction that it can exploit
the competitive advantages it has as a leading player in the traditional media to maintain the same position in the new media.

Multimedia

..................................

..................................

..................................

..............................................
......................

Sverre Munck

Executive Vice President Multimedia

.................

.................

.................

........................................................................................................
...................................................

........................................................................................................
Schibsted was quick to see the opportunities offered by the new media
and made its first Internet investments in 1995. Today, Schibsted is the
leading Internet player in the Nordic area.

Schibsted Multimedia is the largest shareholder
in the leading portal in the Nordic area, and in
2000 it established a position as an active participant in the development of mobile telephone
services. Interesting positions have also been
established in several other niche areas in the
Internet market.
2000 was a year of both consolidation and
growth for Schibsted Multimedia. The listing of
Scandinavia Online AB was visible evidence of the
value creation that has taken place within the
company, and with the establishment of
Schibsted Telecom the company laid the foundations of a new strategic area.
The number of Internet users in the Nordic
countries continued to rise in 2000. The region
leads the world in terms of the proportion of the
population who are regular users of the Internet.
At the end of 2000, more than 2.3 million
Norwegians (63% of the population) had access
to the Internet, while 68% used mobile telephones. Schibsted is present in these markets as a
provider of content, services and technology.
Competition in the portal and e-commerce
markets increased in 2000. There will be room for
fewer newcomers, and consolidation characterises
the market. On a global basis, we have witnessed a
substantial correction of Internet values, with a
dramatic decline of Nasdaq, the technology index
in the USA, with the trend continuing into 2001.
We have seen great fluctuations in the value
assessments of Internet companies, as a consequence of external market conditions and investor
perceptions of which segments are the most promising. But even given the present value assessments and the most recent declines in value, there
is substantial value creation and unrealised potential in Schibsted Multimedia’s portfolio.

Prospects
Schibsted is undisputedly the largest of all the
Scandinavian media companies on the Internet and
is unchanged in its resolve to play a leading role in
the development of services to be supplied on the
broadband network which will be in place throughout the Nordic countries within the next few years.
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In the period ahead there will be an increasing focus on using the Group’s core
business as a basis for the continuous development of new services through new channels of distribution. The Group has strong brand names, a high degree of credibility and
quality content in many areas. The Group is a desirable partner in many respects and
has a unique opportunity to combine both the traditional and the new media.
Schibsted has an overall competitive advantage by having an established presence
in both the traditional and the new media. In this perspective the Group will therefore continue to focus on the establishment of long-term positions in these markets,
regardless of fluctuations in the capital markets.

Schibsted Telecom
Schibsted Telecom is a wholly owned subsidiary which was established in March
2000 for the purpose of developing mobile services in Scandinavia.
In November the service marketed under the name Inpoc was launched in
Norway. Its main target group, mobile telephone users, receive access to the services
either directly via a mobile telephone, or through the Internet portals inpoc.no or
inpoc.se. The service is specially tailored for the mobile telephone, WAP and PDA. In
the future the company also plans to offer broadband content via the third generation mobile network (UMTS).
Activities in this area are coordinated with the Schibsted Group’s newspapers. In
order to maximise the benefits of this cooperation Aftenposten and VG as well as
Aftonbladet and Svenska Dagbladet are co-owners of the operative companies in
Norway and Sweden, respectively. Other partners in this connection include Alcatel,
Netcom, CNN, Atom Films, Bladkompaniet, Det Norske Metereologiske Institutt and
the Oslo Stock Exchange.
In Sweden, Schibsted Telecom was in partnership with France Telecom/Orange in
the bid for the third generation of mobile telephone licences, and in December Orange
Sverige was awarded one of four UMTS licences. Schibsted owns 2% of Orange Sverige.
This corresponds to an equity investment of up to NOK 200 million over five years.
Schibsted Telecom has also agreed to enter into a strategic alliance with Orange under
which the companies will jointly offer a range of services to both private and commercial customers in Scandinavia, and which will bring benefits both at home and at work.

Bokkilden
Bokkilden is wholly owned by Schibsted, but TV 2 has options which could reduce
Schibsted’s ownership in the coming year. Bokkilden is Norway’s largest Internet
bookshop with more than 1.6 million titles in its database.
Bokkilden has strengthened and updated the functionality of its online pages,
partly through a new design and technical upgrading. Bokkilden has also established
cooperation with parties on both the customer and the supplier side, and this includes
several of the largest publishing companies. In January 2001, as the first of its kind
in Norway, Bokkilden launched iFinger products, electronic reference books, which is
expected to bring a good response.
2000 was a year of growth for Bokkilden which tripled its turnover to more than
NOK 20 million and saw a three-fold increase in its membership which totalled 48 000
at year-end. Further growth is expected in 2001.

«Gulltaggen»
Several of Schibsted-owned Internet sites received
prizes when the Norwegian Internet prize,
”Gulltaggen”, was awarded on 15th February 2001.
• Internet site of the Year
Scandinavia Online – http://www.sol.no
• Best Internet news site
Aftenposten – http://www.aftenposten.no
• Best e-commerce site
Bokkilden – http://www.bokkilden.no
• Most user-friendly
Kvasir – http://www.kvasir.no
No 2: Finn – http://www.finn.no
• Best «cutting edge» technology
No 2: TV 2 – http://www.tv2.no
• Newcomer of the Year
No 2: Oslopuls – http://www.oslopuls.no
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European Media Ventures
European Media Ventures (EMV) is a recently established investment company
owned by Schibsted with a focus on consumer services in the area of the Internet,
mobile and broad band communications and digital television. The company manages a considerable investment portfolio on behalf of the Group with a book value in
the order of NOK 70 million.
Schibsted wishes to use excess advertising space in the paper editions of its newspapers and on its Internet sites as payment for ownership interests in online companies.
The level of investment is expected to correspond to excess advertising space worth NOK
80 million and cash payments of NOK 50 million in 2001. This is targeted at companies
which otherwise would not have advertised as much in the Schibsted media. EMV also
aims to manage the investment activities of other media companies in Europe.

BiljettDirekt Ticnet AB
Ticnet merget in early 2001 with BiljettDirekt. Schibsted owns 31% of BiljettDirekt Ticnet
AB which, on behalf of its clients, sells tickets for sports events, theatre and opera
performances, concerts and other recreational activities in Sweden. The company
is currently Sweden’s largest supplier of ticket systems, receiving a commission for
every ticket sold through the system.
BiljettDirekt Ticnet’s aim is to be the leading supplier of tickets in the Nordic area
on the Internet. The new company expected to have a turnover of more than SEK 90
million in 2001 and to sell tickets on the Internet for more than SEK 2 billion, with
online sales accounting for around 10%.

Definition of unique visitors:
The number of people who have visited an
Internet site in a given period. A person is
registered as a unique visitor immediately
after the page comes up on the display.
The same person is only registered once a
month, also when there are repeat visits.

Norway – Unique Weekly Visitors

Sweden – Unique Monthly Visitors

Numbers in 1000

Numbers in 1000
Source: Norsk Gallup

Scandinavia Online (SOL)

Source: SIFO / Relevant Knowledge

Passagen (SOL)

VG

Microsoft

Kvasir
MSN
Alta Vista
Hotmail

Dagbladet
ABC Startsiden

Aftonbladet

Nettavisen

Telia

Yahoo

Spray

TV 2
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Aftenposten
Swipnet

NRK

Yahoo

Finn
0
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4th quarter 2000
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Alt om København

O P E R AT I N G R E S U LT M U LT I M E D I A

Alt om København is an online city guide for Copenhagen. Schibsted Multimedia
owns 49% of the company and Det Berlingske Officin 51%. Alt om København
contains more than 35 000 addresses, over 2 000 profiles of restaurants, cinemas,
cafes and shops, and at least 700 profiles of coming attractions and events in
Copenhagen.

(NOK million)
Operating revenues
Operating expenses
Operating result before goodwill and
other revenues and expenses
GW and other revenues and expenses
Operating result
Share of associated companies

Scandinavia Online

Operating margin %

2000
73
(186)

1999
139
(225)

(113)
50
(63)
405

(86)
80
(6)
(25)

(154.5)

(61.5)

Scandinavia Online (SOL) has one of the largest portal networks in the Nordic market.
It consists of portals in Norway, Sweden, Denmark and Finland and includes subjectspecific channels and a large number of functions for web-based communities and
communications, as well as sophisticated search facilities and integrated e-commerce
in the four languages. The aim of Scandinavia Online is to be a leading media and
communications company in Europe.
The floatation of Scandinavia Online was completed as planned in 2000. On
the first day of trading, 7th June, the company’s shares were traded at SEK 115.
For Schibsted, the investment in Scandinavia Online has been a financial success.
The sale of a 5% shareholding to Telia and the repayment of a loan have more
than covered Schibsted’s investment in SOL. In addition, Schibsted owns 35% of
the company.

Internet and Mobile penetration rates
100 Mobile

Source: SSB / SCB
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Group Functions / Shareholder Information

Shareholder policy
Schibsted was listed on the Oslo Stock Exchange
in 1992. At that point the Board of Directors
established the Group’s shareholder strategy:

Schibsted’s shareholders shall over time
take part in the company’s value creation
by achieving competitive return on their
investment through a combination of an
increase in the share price and dividends.
This objective is linked with the goal of financing
the Group’s expansion without the need for new
equity.

Information to the financial markets

..................................

..................................

..................................

..............................................
......................

Trond Berger

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

.................

.................

..................

........................................................................................................
...................................................

........................................................................................................
The Schibsted Group management is responsible for the development and
execution of the Group’s overall strategy and for co-ordinating the activities of the business areas. In addition, the Group management is responsible for group functions such as accounting, finance, investor relations,
corporate communication, law and real estate management.
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Ongoing contact with the Norwegian and international financial markets is a main priority in
Schibsted. A dedicated and active management
and Investor Relations department is on a daily
basis working towards the investor market in
order for investors to value the company accurately and to secure relevant and up-to-date information. The objective is to increase the market’s
knowledge of the Group, to develop the trust in the
investor market and secure liquidity in the shares.
Schibsted continuously arranges meetings with
investors at home and abroad. Senior management
presents the Group’s results in Oslo each quarter
and in London twice a year. Contact with the international investors is important for Schibsted, and
meetings are held on a regular basis in Europe
and in the United States.
Several of the leading brokerage houses in
Scandinavia follow Schibsted, in addition to some
international ones. Schibsted’s goal is to maintain
analytical coverage from a broad range of brokerage houses.
Schibsteds Internet-site www.schibsted.no
represents an important communication-tool
towards the stock market. As a media-company
with major online-engagement, Schibsted’s ambition is to be in the forefront with regard to the
quality of its Internet site.

Employee stock programme
In order to attract new and retain skilled and talented employees Schibsted believes
that incentive-arrangements will become increasingly important in the years to come.
Again in 2000 the employees of Schibsted were offered Schibsted shares worth
NOK 7 500 at a 20% discount, in accordance with Norwegian tax laws. Approximately
33% of those who received the offer accepted in 2000, and 30% in 1999.

Dividend
The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting a dividend of NOK 2
per share for 2000, an increase from NOK 1.75 the year before. The dividend will be
paid on 25th May 2001 to registered shareholders as of 10th May 2001, the day of
the Annual General Meeting.

Share price development
The Schibsted shares were traded at NOK 149 at the beginning of 2000. At the end
of year the shares stood at NOK 108,50 a decrease of 27%. The Oslo Stock Exchange
All Shares Index decreased by 2% in the same period. The lowest price at which the
Schibsted share was traded was NOK 99 on 21st December 2000, and the highest
price was NOK 283 on 7th March 2000. The decrease in the share price can mainly
be explained by a general repricing of technology and media shares. The liquidity of
the Schibsted share has increasingly improved. The average number of shares traded
per day increased from 182 000 in 1999 to 269 000 in 2000. Foreign ownership at
the end of 2000 was 26%, down from 36% at the beginning of the year.

Share repurchase
The Annual General Meeting on 7th May 1998 authorised the Board of Directors’ to
repurchase shares in Schibsted ASA. The Annual General Meeting of 11th May 2000
decided to extend the share repurchase authorisation limited to 6 925 000 shares.
In 2000 Schibsted repurchased 130 000 shares.
Share Price Development 2000
Source: Datastream
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“RISK” adjustments
The Norwegian tax code requires shareholders that are taxed in Norway to adjust
the historical costs of the shares for the annual “RISK” amount when calculating
gain from the sale of shares. The “RISK” amount is equal to the result after tax and
dividend. As a result, double taxation will be avoided for the part of the gain which
is related to previously taxed profits. These rules do not apply to shareholders which
are not taxable in Norway.

”RISK” amount
(NOK)
“RISK” per share as at 1st January

1993
1.04

1994
5.16

1995
4.31

1996
4.25

1997
4.96

1998
6.23

1999 2000
1.98 1.68

Calendar of Events 2001

.......................

.......................

..................

.......................

..........................................................................

...............................

...........................................................................
Investor relations contact: Mette D. Storvestre
Tel: +47 23 10 66 97 Fax: +47 22 33 63 49
E-mail: mette.storvestre@schibsted.no

Accounts 1st Quarter 2001
Presentation
Annual General Meeting
Telephone Conference
Accounts 2nd Quarter 2001
Presentation
Telephone Conference
Accounts 3rd Quarter 2001
Presentation
Telephone Conference

Date

Time

May 10th
May 10th
May 10th

1600 CET
1700 CET
1800 CET

August 16th
August 16th

1600 CET
1730 CET

November 15th
November 15th

1600 CET
1730 CET

Mailing list: To be included in the Schibsted
mailing list, please send your request to

10 Largest Shareholders as at 31st December 2000

schibsted@schibsted.no

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10

Please quote name, company and e-mail address
and press releases and reports will be sent to you.

For more investor information, please visit our website:

www.schibsted.no

..........................................................................

Blommenholm Industrier
Folketrygdfondet
Boston Safe Deposit
Avanse
Marathon
Orkla
Storebrand Livsforsikring
State Street Bank
Chase Manhattan Bank
KLP Forsikring

Foreign ownership:
Number of shareholders:
Shares outstanding:
Of which repurchased shares:
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Number of shares
18 083 520
3 762 300
3 597 819
3 128 222
3 032 349
2 920 231
2 495 400
2 403 058
1 392 737
1 291 100

Share (%)
26.11
5.43
5.19
4.52
4.38
4.21
3.60
3.47
2.01
1.86
26.3
6 947
69 250 000
130 000

Schibsted Finans

Schibsted Eiendom

Schibsted Finans AS (Schibsted Finance) is the Group’s internal
bank responsible for external borrowings and cash management.
In addition, Schibsted Finans is responsible for the Group’s foreign
exchange and interest rate management.
Schibsted Finans entered into a syndicated multicurrency
revolving credit totalling USD 300 million in October 1997. The
credit is provided by a syndicate of 9 Norwegian and international
banks and has a maturity of 7 years. The facility, which was obtained on very favourable terms, was established in order to provide
the Group with financial flexibility. At the end of 2000 NOK 700
million, SEK 40 million, CHF 20 million and GBP 8 million has been
borrowed under the facility.
In addition, Schibsted Finans has two loans with the Nordic
Investment Bank. In November 1999 entered into a ten year loan
agreement of EUR 25 million. Schibsted Finans also has a USD 32
million term loan entered Into in December 1996. This loan has
been converted to a loan of NOK 206 million, and will be repaid in
full by 2008.
In July 1998 when Schibsted acquired a majority holding in
Svenska Dagbladet Holding AB, it also became the majority owner
of Tidningstryckarna Svenska Dagbladet Aftonbladet AB and
Fastighets AB Tidningsfabriken. These two companies have external
leasing agreements and loans totalling SEK 389 million.
Schibsted Finans has entered into two interest rate hedging
agreements for a total of NOK 350 million protecting the Group
against a possible interest rate increase. As part of a 5 year interest
rate swap totalling NOK 250 million entered into in September 1996
Schibsted pays 6.55% interest. In April 1997 Schibsted Finans entered into a 10 year NOK 100 million 7% interest rate cap. During the
first half of 1999 Tidningstryckarna Svenska Dagbladet Aftonbladet
AB entered into an interest rate swap which fixes the interest rate
on leasing agreements totalling SEK 250 million for six years.
As a currency hedge against the Group’s activities, assets and
financial investments denominated in Sweden, Denmark , Estonia
and on the continent in addition to financial investments in EUR
and USD, the Group has loans in the respective currencies. The
accounting principles require a continuous recording of foreign
exchange gains and losses, but the market value of assets is not
adjusted accordingly. Consequently the company may experience
substantial foreign exchange profits and losses as a result of
changes in the appreciation of the Norwegian krone. In 2000 the
Group had a net exchange loss totalling NOK 9 million.
Surplus liquidity is for the most part invested in short term
interest rate instruments and money market funds.

Schibsted Eiendom (Schibsted Real Estate) manages the Group’s real estate,
which at year-end comprised 146 000 m2, excluding leased premises. Most
of the buildings are owned directly or through subsidiaries of Schibsted
Eiendom. Some properties are owned by other Group companies. All the
properties are fully let, mainly to companies of the Schibsted Group.
Schibsted Drift AS, a subsidiary of Schibsted Eiendom, is responsible for the
day-to-day operations of the Group’s properties in Norway. This includes
reception services, security, operative functions and ongoing maintenance.
Schibsted Eiendom owns 25% of Ejendomsadministration Jenagade 22,
which in turn owns a TV centre at Amager in Copenhagen.

Addresses, owned buildings
Akersgaten 34
Akersgaten 36
Akersgaten 51/Apotekergaten 6
Akersgaten 55
Apotekergaten 10
Gildi str. 1 Tartu
Grensen 15/Akersgaten 32 (50%)
Jenagade 22, Amager,
København (25%)
Sandakerveien 121
Skjæraveien 24
Stålfjæra 5
Tähe str. 133 Tartu
Vandagatan 3, Akalla, Stockholm
Total
Of which Schibsted owns

Total m2
3 300
1 300
13 000
32 000
6 400
1 100
4 100/2 050
9 600/2 400
45 000
2 100
2 200
7 800
26 700
154 600
145 350

Tenants
Aftenposten
Aftenposten
Aftenposten
VG, Aftenposten
Schibsted, Aftenposten
Eesti Meedia
Chr. Schibsteds Forlag
Metronome Studios,
Metronome Productions
Schibsted Trykk
Bladkompaniet
Bladkompaniet
Eesti Meedia
Tidningstryckarna
Offices, production
and storage

Addresses, rented buildings
Total m2
Arenavägen – Globen City,
Stockholm
Gullhaug Torv 3, Oslo

7 400
7 700

Marieberg, Stockholm

13850

Mäster Samuelsgt 56, Stockholm

5 200

Maakri 23, Tallinn

3 800

Main Tenants
Aftonbladet
Nydalen Studios AS
Film Tenikk Norge AS
Svenska Dagbladet,
until 2001
Svenska Dagbladet from
August 2001
Eesti Meedia

f i na n s & e ie n d o m 47

CONTENTS

Schibsted Group: Income statement 50 Balance sheet 51 Statement of cash flow 52 Notes 53
Schibsted ASA: Income statement 66 Balance sheet 67 Statement of cash flow 68 Notes 69
Auditor’s report 75

Value added statement 76

annual accounts

............................................................................

...............................

............................................................................

...............................................

......................................

Consolidated income statement
Schibsted Group

......................................

......................................

...............................

.........

..........

(NOK million)

Note

2000

1999

1998

Operating revenues

4,5

8 270

7 402

6 559

Raw materials, work in progress
and finished goods
Personnel expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Other operating expenses

6
14
7

(1 701)
(2 478)
(408)
(3 170)

(1 345)
(2 371)
(401)
(2 987)

(1 058)
(2 071)
(274)
(2 647)

Operating profit before goodwill and
other revenues and expenses

5

513

298

509

Amortisation goodwill
Other revenues and expenses

14
3

(72)
96

(83)
(43)

(55)
(136)

Operating profit

5

537

172

318

Income from associated companies

12

382

(67)

8

8

291
(260)
31

177
(168)
9

56
(115)
(59)

950

114

267

(335)

(87)

(96)

Net profit

615

27

171

Net profit attributable to minority interests
Net profit attributable to majority interests

7
608

(15)
42

(1)
172

8,78

0,61

2,48

Financial income
Financial expenses
Net financial items
Profit before taxes
Taxes

21

Earnings per share (NOK)

15

Oslo, 22 March 2001
The Board of Directors of Schibsted ASA
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Tinius Nagell-Erichsen
Chairman of the Board

Ole Lund

Toril Brandtzæg

Hilde Harbo

Cato A. Holmsen

Einar Kloster

Gunnar Nordby

Liz Ovesen

Jan Reinås

Ole Jacob Sunde

Kristian Wilhelmsen

Kjell Aamot
President & Chief
Executive Officer

Consolidated balance sheet at 31 December
Schibsted Group

14

3 164

3 242

3 265

Investments in associated companies
Investments in other shares
Other financial fixed assets
Financial fixed assets

12
11
13

1 058
193
242
1 493

662
248
161
1 071

661
146
101
908

5 598

5 282

5 080

108
1 203
83
537
1 931

95
1 037
117
676
1 925

63
857
149
532
1 601

Total assets

7 529

7 207

6 681

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital
Share premium reserve
Paid in capital
Retained earnings
Minority interests
Shareholders’ equity
15

69
76
145
2 568
132
2 845

69
76
145
2 157
99
2 401

69
76
145
2 229
121
2 495

Fixed assets
Inventories
Receivables
Investments
Cash and bank deposits
Current assets

10
9

Deferred tax liabilities
Pension liabilities and other provisions
Provisions

21
17

104
551
655

22
658
680

30
548
578

Interest bearing long term debt
Other long term liabilities
Long term liabilities

16

1 751
15
1 766

2 267
21
2 288

1 587
131
1 718

Current liabilities

22

2 263

1 838

1 890

7 529

7 207

6 681

Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities

......................................................

Tangible fixed assets

..........................................................................

41
866
907

..............................

57
912
969

..........................................................................

78
863
941

...................................

21
14

...................................

ASSETS
Deferred tax assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets
Intangible fixed assets

...................................

1998

............................

1999

......

2000

......

Note

......

(NOK million)
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............................................................................

...............................

..........................................................................

...............................................

......................................

Consolidated statement of cash flow
Schibsted Group

......................................

......................................

...............................

.........

..........

(NOK million)

(Note 24)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxes
Income from associated companies
Dividends received from associated companies
Taxes paid
Sales losses / (gains) fixed assets
Depreciation and amortisation
Change in working capital
Cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments in depreciable assets
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries,
net of cash acquired
Proceeds from sale of depreciable assets
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries,
net of cash sold
Investments in / sale of equity investments
Other investments / sales
Cash flow from investing activities
Cash flow before financing

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New long term interest bearing debt
Repayment of long term interest bearing debt
Purchase of own shares
Dividends paid
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2000

1999

1998

950
(382)
21
(129)
(184)
480
(113)

114
67
33
(81)
(204)
484
(236)

267
(8)
36
(242)
(28)
329
222

643

177

576

(375)

(345)

(1 213)

(28)
14

(249)
128

(2)
131

68
233
(40)

73
(122)
4

(149)
(99)

(128)

(511)

(1 332)

515

(334)

(756)

634
(35)

914

(516)
(17)
(121)

(121)

(121)

Cash flow from financing activities

(654)

478

793

Cash flow for the year

(139)

144

37

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

676

532

495

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

537

676

532

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

NOTE

1.

DESCRIPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The accompanying consolidated financial statements present the financial position of Schibsted ASA and its
subsidiaries and is prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Norway.

Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include Schibsted ASA and those companies in which Schibsted ASA,
directly or indirectly, has a majority interest, either through ownership or by agreement. The consolidated
financial statements are prepared on the basis that the group is a single entity and all material transactions
between consolidated companies are eliminated.
The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis. Upon acquisition of subsidiary
operations the cost of the shares are allocated to identifiable assets and liabilities based on estimated fair values
at the time of acquisition. Any difference between purchase price and the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill is amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life.

Translation of foreign operations
The accounting principles applied by foreign subsidiaries, joint ventures and associated companies are harmonised
with the Group’s accounting principles as part of the consolidation. In translating the financial statements from
the respective foreign currencies to Norwegian kroner (NOK), assets and liabilities are translated using the
exchange rate at the balance sheet date while income statement items are translated using the average exchange
rate for the reporting period. Translation differences are charged or credited directly to shareholders’ equity.

........
........

Associated companies
Associated companies are defined as companies where Schibsted ASA, directly or through subsidiaries does not
have a majority interest but exercises significant management influence and has a significant ownership interest, normally 20-50%. Associated companies are accounted for using the equity method of accounting under
which Schibsted recognises its share of the company’s net profit and gains or losses on sale on a separate line
in the income statement. In the balance sheet the investment is recorded at cost adjusted for share of income
and dividends received.

.......
........

Revenue recognition

..........................................................................
...........................................................................

. . . . . . ................................................ . . . . . . .

..........................................................................
...........................................................................

.....................................

Tangible and intangible fixed assets
Tangible and intangible fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and amortisation. The
cost of assets constructed by the Group includes interest cost on expenditures during the construction period. Fixed
assets with limited useful life are depreciated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets.

.....................................

Shares and bonds
Shares and bonds classified as current assets are valued at the lower of cost or market value. Shares and bonds
classified as fixed assets are valued at cost or at market value if market value is lower than cost and the decline in value is not considered to be temporary.

....................................
.....................................

Classification
Assets and liabilities connected to the business cycle are classified as current assets or liabilities. Receivables
or liabilities not related to the business cycle are classified as current if they are of a short term nature. Shares
and other equity investments, which are not considered to be long term investments, are classified as current
assets. Other assets are classified as fixed assets and other liabilities are classified as long term liabilities.

....................................
.............................

Valuation and classification principles

.............................
........

Advertising revenues are recognised when the ads are placed at full price less discounts. Subscription revenues
are prepaid and recognised in income at full price when the newspapers are delivered. Casual sales are recognised in income based on copies sold, ie. copies delivered less returns.
Barter agreements are recognised in income at market value at the time of the transaction. Market value is
measured based on the value of the service delivered or received, depending on which service that can be most
reliably measured.
For construction contracts (TV/Film-productions), income is recognised using the percentage-of-completion
method of accounting. Under this method, income and profit are recognised as work under the contract progresses.

. . . . . . ................................................................................................ . . . . . . .

........

Joint ventures
Joint ventures are defined as operations in which Schibsted ASA directly or through subsidiaries, participate,
and where the participants through agreements have joint control over the operation. Joint ventures are
accounted for using pro rata consolidation where the Group’s share of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
are recorded line by line in the consolidated financial statements.
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............................................................................

...............................

..........................................................................

...............................................

......................................

......................................

......................................

...............................

Normal repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Major improvements are capitalised and depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset.
Environmental expenditures are expensed as they are incurred, unless the measures increase capacity, productivity, or the remaining useful life of the related facility. Goodwill, representing the excess of the cost of an
acquired business over the fair value of identifiable net assets, is capitalised and amortised on a straight line
basis over its estimated useful life.
Tangible and intangible fixed assets that are impaired are written down to fair value when, as a result of
certain impairment indicators, it appears that their recoverable value is lower than their carrying value.
Impairment is determined for fixed assets by comparing their existing carrying value to the nominal cash
flows they are expected to generate through future use.

Leased assets
Capital leases, which provide Schibsted with substantially all the rights and obligations of ownership, are capitalised and included in long term interest bearing debt at the present value of the lease payments. The assets
are depreciated according to plan and the liability is reduced by the amount of lease payments less the effective interest expense.
Foreign currency financial instruments
Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, and foreign currency contracts (together; foreign currency financial instruments) that do not meet the criteria set for hedge accounting for firm commitments, are
valued at fair value. Net unrealised exchange gains or losses are included in other financial income or expenses. Foreign currency financial instruments hedging firm commitments are accounted for as hedges. Gains or
losses are deferred and included in income as part of the hedged transaction.

.........

Restructuring costs
Expenses related to restructuring and reorganisation of operations are recognised in accordance with the matching principle. Expenses not related to revenues in later periods are expensed as incurred. Expenses related to
restructuring and reorganisation are considered to be incurred when the implementation plan is adopted and
communicated.

..........

Pension cost
Pension liabilities related to benefit plans are valued at the net present value of future pension benefits earned
at the balance sheet date and calculated on the basis of assumptions for the discount rate, expected future
wage growth and pension adjustments. Pension plan assets are valued at market value. Net pension obligations
on under-funded contracts are recorded as provisions, while the net assets of over-funded contracts are recorded in financial fixed assets. Net periodic pension cost, which is gross pension cost less estimated return on
plan assets adjusted for amortisation of unrecognised gains and losses, is included in personnel expenses.
In the case of pension plans that are defined for accounting purposes as contribution plans, pension costs
are expensed in line with the payment of pension premiums.
Income taxes
Income tax expense includes current taxes and change in deferred taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
calculated in accordance with the liability method. Deferred income tax is provided for all temporary differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities, and for carry forward losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised only when it is expected that the benefit can be realised through taxable
income from future profits. Deferred taxes are not discounted.
Other revenues and expenses
Operating revenue and expense items of a non-recurring nature and of material importance to business areas
are separated from ordinary operating revenues and expenses and reported in a separate line in the income
statement.
Extraordinary items
Income and expenses that are material and that are either outside of the Group’s ordinary activities or due to
an unusual business risk, and that are not expected to occur regularly, are classified as extraordinary items in
the income statement.
Statement of cash flows
The statement of cash flows is prepared under the indirect method. Cash and cash equivalents include cash, bank
deposits and other monetary instruments with a maturity of less than three months at the date of purchase.

Change in classification
With effect from 2000, Other revenues and expenses are presented in a separate line in the income statement.
In addition, Operating profit before goodwill and other revenues and expenses is presented. The comparable
figures for previous years are similarly restated.
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NOTE

2.

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS

Schibsted held in 1999 direct ownership interests in the joint ventures Scandinavia Online AS, Norway and
Scandinavia Online AB, Sweden and the subsidiary Scandinavia Online AS, Denmark. At 31 March 2000 the
Scandinavia Online Group was established with Scandinavia Online AB as parent company. Schibsted held at
that time approximately 50% of the shares in Scandinavia Online AB. The Scandinavia Online Group was established through sale of shares in Scandinavia Online AS, Norway and Scandinavia Online AS, Denmark with
consideration paid in shares in Scandinavia Online AB. For accounting purposes these transactions were recorded by continuing the net book value previously reported in the consolidated financial statements. The investment in Scandinavia Online AB is with effect from 2 quarter 2000 reported as investment in an associated
company.
In connection with the listing of Scandinavia Online AB, Schibsted sold 5% of the shares in Scandinavia
Online AB. In addition, Schibsted’s ownership interest was diluted to 35.45% through share issue in
Scandinavia Online AB in connection with the listing. Resulting from the sale of shares and the effect of dilution, Schibsted recognised a gain of approximately NOK 550 million. Following further share issues in
Scandinavia Online AB, Schibsted’s ownership interest is reduced to 34.6%.
Schibsted had at 31 December 1999 an ownership interest in 20 Minutes Holding AG of 40%. In November
2000, Apax became new shareholder through an investment of EUR 50 million. Simultanously Schibsted invested EUR 22 million and other former owners invested EUR 5 million. After these transactions, Schibsted’s
ownership share in 20 Minutes Holding AG is 41.5% before potential dilution from options. As there is measurement problems related to the gain from these transactions, the recognition is deferred until the gain can be
reliably measured.
Schibsted has in 2000 increased its ownership share in Svenska Dagbladet Holding AB from 73.6% to
88.65% through a share issue.

NOTE

3.

OTHER REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Other revenues and expenses consists of the following items:
2000

1998

(8)
(61)
(119)
23
122
(43)

(118)
(12)
(80)
28
46
(136)

116
(82)
62
96

Refund of pension funds Sweden is related to the SPP-pension plan under which the insurance company has
repaid excess plan assets to members. The pension plan is accounted for as a defined contribution plan and the
net present value of the repayment was included in income when the repayment was assured.
Restructuring costs Swenden is mainly related to ongoing restructuring and reorganising programmes in
Svenska Dagbladet and Aftonbladet. In 2000, NOK 74 million is charged to expense related to expansion of
restructuring program started in 1999 and reorganisation of distribution in Svenska Dagbladet.
The most significant gains on sale of subsidiaries in 2000 are related to sale of 100% of the shares in Allt
om Stockholm AB and 52% of the shares in Sol Børs AS. Total gain on these sales were NOK 38 million.

G E O G R A P H I C A L S E G M E N T I N FO R M AT I O N

........

4.

........

NOTE

Operating revenues are divided as follows based on the location of the operations:

Operating revenues divided by location of the customers do not deviate materially from operating revenues
divided by location of the operations.

..........................................................................

6 559

..............................

7 402

..........................................................................

1998

3 776
2 675
108

.....................................

1999

4 163
3 044
195

.....................................

2000

4 454
3 541
198
77
8 270

.....................................

Norway
Other Scandinavian countries
Estonia
Other areas
Total

.............................

(NOK million)

......................................................

Refund of pension funds Sweden
Restructuring costs Norway
Restructuring costs Sweden
Start-up costs new printing plant Norway
Gain on sale of old printing plant Norway
Gain on sale of subsidiaries etc.
Total

1999

........

(NOK million)

a n n ua l a c c ou n t s 55

............................................................................

...............................

..........................................................................

...............................................

......................................

......................................

......................................

...............................

.........

..........

NOTE 5.

B U S I N E S S A R E A I N FO R M AT I O N

Schibsted’s operations are reported in five business areas. The division is in accordance with the Group’s organisation and internal management reporting. The operations of the business areas are mainly carried out
through separate companies within the business areas. Allocation of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities
to business areas are based on the financial statements for these companies. All transactions between business areas are made at normal terms.
Business area Estonia includes newspapers, magazines, TV and Internet-activities. Other operations include
the parent company Schibsted ASA, Schibsted Eiendom Group, Schibsted Finans AS and eliminations.
Certain financial statement items, allocated to business areas, are shown below:
2000

Newspapers

TV/Film

Multimedia

Publishing

Estonia

Other
operations

Schibsted
Group

53
21
74
50
198
(207)

(5)
14
9
135

943
2 505
2 900
1 922
8 270
(7 349)

(NOK million)

Subscription revenues
Casual sales revenues
Advertising revenues
Other revenues
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Depreciation and
amortisation
Operating profit before
goodwill and other
revenues and expenses
Amortisation goodwill
Other revenues and
expenses
Operating profit
Income from associated
companies
Assets
Liabilities
Investments in
depreciable assets

1999

865
2 476
2 787
509
6 637
(5 899)

1 076
1 076
(946)

28
45
73
(176)

25
8
16
228
277
(256)

(288)

(52)

(10)

(3)

(11)

(44)

(408)

450
(22)

78
(12)

(113)
(11)

18
(9)

(20)
(19)

100
1

513
(72)

61

10

(10)

96

91

537

(4)

382

35
463

66

(63)

19

(39)

(93)

77

405

(3)

6 163
4 225

1 016
685

838
869

369
353

321
456

(1 178)
(1 904)

7 529
4 684

245

76

12

1

40

1

375

Newspapers

TV/Film

Multimedia

Publishing

Estonia

Other
operations

Schibsted
Group

51
22
78
43
194
(213)

(4)
12
8
91

933
2 407
2 524
1 538
7 402
(6 703)

(NOK million)

Subscription revenues
Casual sales revenues
Advertising revenues
Other revenues
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Depreciation and
amortisation
Operating profit before
goodwill and other
revenues and expenses
Amortisation goodwill
Other revenues and
expenses
Operating profit
Income from associated
companies
Assets
Liabilities
Investments in
depreciable assets
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862
2 379
2 372
471
6 084
(5 479)

1
708
709
(630)

52
87
139
(214)

20
6
25
217
268
(258)

(283)

(47)

(11)

(2)

(13)

(45)

(401)

322
(18)

32
(24)

(86)
(7)

8
(16)

(32)
(18)

54

298
(83)

(130)

87

(43)

174

8

(6)

(8)

(50)

54

172

(28)

(11)

(25)

(3)

5 170
3 628

828
712

463
677

357
343

303
402

86
(956)

7 207
4 806

339

35

18

1

5

13

411

(67)

1998

Newspapers

TV/Film

Multimedia

Publishing

Estonia

Other
operations

Schibsted
Group

15
15
20
58
108
(130)

(2)
(8)
4
(6)
80

706
2 327
2 306
1 220
6 559
(5 776)

(NOK million)

Subscription revenues
Casual sales revenues
Advertising revenues
Other revenues
Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Depreciation and
amortisation
Operating profit before
goodwill and other
revenues and expenses
Amortisation goodwill
Other revenues and
expenses

672
2 305
2 264
339
5 580
(4 757)

648
648
(588)

7
102
109
(270)

21
7
23
69
120
(111)

(182)

(45)

(13)

(1)

(9)

(24)

(274)

641
(18)

15
(18)

(174)
(6)

8
(5)

(31)
(8)

50

509
(55)

(190)

28

(2)

28

(136)

433

25

(182)

3

78

318

1

13

(6)

(1)

1

8

4 703
3 359

876
721

288
544

160
127

372
413

282
(978)

6 681
4 186

232

51

29

1

2

23

338

Operating profit
Income from associated
companies
Assets
Liabilities
Investments in
depreciable assets

NOTE

6.

(39)

P E R S O N N E L E X P E N S E S A N D E M P L OY E E S

Personnel expenses consists of the following items:
1999

1998

Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Net pension cost
Other benefits
Total

1 866
401
106
105
2 478

1 788
376
118
89
2 371

1 517
340
135
79
2 071

Average number of employees

4 763

4 905

4 050

2000

1999

592
298
733
254
285
252
756
3 170

560
309
713
197
272
233
703
2 987

2000

1999

1998

48
(127)
(9)
119
31

53
(131)
29
58
9

45
(80)
(26)
2
(59)

7.

O T H E R O P E R AT I NG E X P E N S E S

........

NOTE

Other operating expenses consists of the following items:

Net other financial income includes mainly income from financial investments through gains and losses on
sale, change in unrealised losses and dividends received.

..........................................................................

Interest income
Interest expense
Net foreign exchange gains (losses)
Net other financial income
Net financial items

..............................

(NOK million)

..........................................................................

Financial income and expenses consists of the following items:

.....................................

NET FINANCIAL ITEMS

.....................................

8.

.....................................

NOTE

.............................

Commissions
PR, advertising and campaigns
Distribution
Printing contracts
Rent, maintenance etc.
Professional fees
Other
Total

........

(NOK million)

......................................................

2000

........

(NOK million)
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............................................................................

...............................

..........................................................................

...............................................

......................................

......................................

NOTE

9.

INVESTMENTS

Investments consists of the following items:
(NOK million)

2000

1999

1998

37
10
36
83

28
10
79
117

6
20
123
149

2000

1999

1998

837
38
328
1 203

703
26
308
1 037

540
49
268
857

Ownership

Book value

Market value

10.2%
12.0%
4.9%
11.8%
4.2%
0.6%

21
11
24
15
13
18
10
9
72
193

Shares and equity funds
Monetary investments with maturity exceeding 3 months
Other interest bearing investments
Total

Monetary investments are bonds issued or guaranteed by government institutions.

......................................

...............................

NOTE

10.

R E C E I VA B L E S

Receivables consists of the following items:
(NOK million)

Accounts receivable
Prepayments to suppliers
Other receivables
Total

.........

..........

NOTE

11.

INVESTMENTS IN OTHER SHARES

Investments in other shares consists of the following items:
(NOK million)

Asker og Bærums Budstikke ASA
TV 2 Interaktiv AS
Sponsor Service ASA
Safetel ASA
Telenor Venture II AS
Digital Ventures II Ltd
AOL Time Warner Inc
SBS Broadcasting S.A.
Other shares
Total

NOTE

12.

10
14

I N V E S T M E N T S I N A S S O C I AT E D C O M PA N I E S

Movement in investments in associated companies in 2000 were as follows:
Location

Ownership
31 December

Book value
1 January

Kristiansand
Trondheim
Stavanger
Bergen
Harstad
Oslo
Copenhagen
Zurich
Bergen
Stockholm

25.0%
31.9%
31.5%
24.4%
39.0%

56
118
133
103
42

Net
additions

(NOK million)

Fædrelandsvennen AS
Adresseavisen ASA
Stavanger Aftenblad ASA
Bergens Tidende AS
AS Harstad Tidende
GoToGate AS
Scanpix Danmark AS
20 Minutes Holding AG
TV 2 AS
Scandinavia Online AB
Other
Total

49.0%
41.5%
33.3%
34.6%

(16)
151
75
662

26
28
131
(19)
105
(25)
246

Income from
assosiated
companies *

1
10
7
15
(2)
(26)
(3)
(90)
77
204
(22)
171

Dividend Book value
received 31 December

(2)
(9)
(5)
(1)

(4)
(21)

55
119
135
117
40
25
25
209
309
24
1 058

* The difference against income from associated companies as presented in the income statement is related to
gains of NOK 211 million on sales of shares in associated companies.
Excess values included in book value of investments in associated companies at 31 December 2000 amounts
to NOK 98 million and is mainly related to goodwill being amortised over estimated useful life
(5-20 years). Depreciation and amortisation in 2000 amounted to NOK 10 million.
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NOTE

13.

OTHER FINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS

Other financial fixed assets consists of the following items:
(NOK million)

2000

1999

1998

Prepaid pension cost (note 18)
Receivables from joint ventures and associated companies
Other long term receivables
Total

14
174
54
242

14
93
54
161

9
42
50
101

NOTE

14.

TA NG I B L E A N D I N TA NG I B L E F I X E D A S S E T S
Goodwill

Other
intangible
assets

Buildings
and land

Construction in
progress

Machinery

Equipment,
furniture,
vehicles

Total

Cost at 1 January
1 043
Transfers
Additions
43
Disposals at cost
(78)
Cost at 31 December
1 008
Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation at 31 December
(271)
Book value at 31 December
737
Depreciation and
amortisation 2000
72
Depreciation method
Straight line
Estimated useful life
5-20 years

212

26
(36)
65
55

1 443
2
56
(5)
1 496

1 124
40
154
(224)
1 094

5 726

60
(5)
267

1 878
(6)
49
(3)
1 918

(141)
126

(308)
1 610

55

(372)
1 124

(719)
375

(1 811)
4 027
480

(NOK million)

43

76

124

165

Straight line
5-10 years

Straight line
25-50 years

Straight line
5-20 years

Straight line
3-10 years

427
(315)
5 838

Tangible fixed assets includes assets held under financial lease agreements. The related tangible assets have a
cost of NOK 270 million and a book value of NOK 212 million. Depreciation in 2000 amounts to NOK 28 million.
The Schibsted Group has operating lease agreements mainly related to office buildings and cinemas. Annual
rent amounts to approximately NOK 100 million.
Goodwill can be specified by company as follows:
Cost

Accumulated
amortisation

Book
value

Amortisation
2000

Aftonbladet Hierta AB
Newspapers
AS Eesti Meedia
Estonia
Sandrew Metronome AB
TV Film
Dine Penger AS
Publishing
Bladkompaniet AS
Publishing
Other
Total

1995
1998
1998
1997
1999

20 years
20 years
20 years
20 years
20 years

338
139
112
98
75
246
1 008

(87)
(17)
(17)
(21)
(8)
(121)
(271)

251
122
95
77
67
125
737

18
7
6
5
4
32
72

15.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

........

NOTE

Changes in shareholders’ equity were as follows in 2000:

2 157
608
(138)

99
7

2 401
615
(138)
(8)
(17)

(8)

69

(0)

(17)

(0)

(42)
2 568

76

31
3
132

31
(39)
2 845

The share capital of Schibsted ASA consists of 69 250 000 shares each of par value NOK 1. In 2000, Schibsted
ASA has purchased 130 000 own shares for NOK 17 million in order to secure options granted to senior management.
Earnings per share is calculated using an average number of shares of 69 233 260 in 2000 and 69 250 000
in previous years.

..........................................................................

76

..............................

Total
shareholders’
equity

..........................................................................

Minority
interests

.....................................

69

Retained
earnings

.....................................

Shareholders’ equity at 31 Dec 1999
Net profit
Dividends Schibsted ASA
Dividends from subsidiaries
Purchase of own shares
Share issue and change in
ownership interest in subsidiaries
Translation differences and other
Shareholders’ equity at 31 Dec 2000

Share
premium
reserve

.....................................

Own
shares

.............................

Share
capital
(NOK million)

......................................................

Amortisation
period

........

Acquired

........

Business
area

(NOK million)
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............................................................................

...............................

..........................................................................

...............................................

......................................

......................................

......................................

...............................

.........

..........

NOTE

16.

INTEREST BEARING LONG TERM DEBT

Interest bearing long term debt allocated by lenders and currency:
(NOK million)

Den Nordiske Investeringsbank
Den Nordiske Investeringsbank
Syndicated loan
Syndicated loan
Syndicated loan
Syndicated loan
Syndicated loan
Svenska Handelsbanken
Financial lease agreements
Other
Total

Currency

2000

1999

1998

EUR
NOK
NOK
DKK
SEK
GBP
CHF
SEK
SEK

206
206
700

202
206
800
206
330
104

206
300
155
234

152
242
25
2 267

158
203
331
1 587

37
106
108
150
212
26
1 751

Loan from Den Nordiske Investeringsbank in EUR has a maturity of 10 years from 1999. The loan amounts to
EUR 25 million and the interest rate is Euribor plus a margin.
Loan from Den Nordiske Investeringsbank in NOK has a maturity of 12 years from 1996. The loan amounts to
USD 32 million and instalments and interest payments are fully hedged against NOK through a currency- and
interest rate swap. The interest rate is Libor plus a margin.
The syndicated loan is a USD 300 million revolving multicurrency credit facility with a maturity of 7 years
entered into with 9 banks in 1997. The interest rate is the reference rate in the various currencies plus a margin.
The loan agreements have financial covenants related to, among others, the relative size of the equity, the
cash flow of the Group, formal restrictions in relation to obtaining further financing at subsidiaries and a
negative pledge on the Group’s assets. However, no other security is provided for the loans.
Interest bearing long term debt is due for repayment as follows:
Year

NOK million

2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006 and later
Total

NOTE

17.

47
63
63
1 011
102
465
1 751

PENSION LIABILITIES AND OTHER PROVISIONS

Pension liabilities and other provisions consists of the following items:
(NOK million)

2000

1999

1998

Accrued pension liabilities (note 18)
Other provisions
Total

549
2
551

561
97
658

548

The majority of other provisions in 1999 is related to restructuring costs.
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548

NOTE

18.

PENSION PLANS

A majority of the Norwegian companies within the Schibsted Group maintain their collective pension insurance
schemes with Vital. The individual companies’ policies are uniform. The main conditions are 30-years’ salaried
employment, a 66% pension in relation to the pension base on 1 January of the year attaining the age of 67,
and spouse and child pensions. At 31 December 2000 the pension plan had 2 385 (2 235) members.
In addition to the funded pension obligations, the Group has unfunded obligations. These obligations relate
to persons not included in the pension scheme, pensions for salaries above 12G, AFP, early retirement pensions
and disability pensions for all employees. Disability pensions and certain additional pensions may be charged to
the Group’s pension plan assets.
The subsidiaries outside Norway have pension schemes based on local practise and regulations. In addition,
the companies have unfunded pension obligations mainly related to retired employees. Unfunded pension obligations are calculated using assumptions approximately equivalent to the assumptions used for the Group’s
obligations described above.
The net pension cost included in personnel expenses is computed as follows:
(NOK million)

2000

1999

1998

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortisation of gains and losses
Net pension cost – defined benefit plans
Net pension cost – defined contribution plans
Net pension cost

72
92
(94)
(4)
66
40
106

71
87
(85)
9
82
36
118

95
80
(70)
1
106
29
135

Funded status of the Group’s pension plans are as follows:

19.

1998

1 785
1 200
(585)
46
(539)
9
(548)

6.0%
7.0%
3.0%
2.0%
1.6%

6.0%
7.0%
3.0%
2.0%
1.6%

5.0%
6.0%
3.0%
2.0%
1.6%

G UA R A N T E E S

........

NOTE

1999

1 647
1 278
(369)
(178)
(547)
14
(561)

The Group has issued guarantees in respect of loans to employees totalling NOK 23 million (NOK 15 million).

FINANCIAL MARKET RISK

..........................................................................

..............................

..........................................................................

.....................................

.....................................

With NOK as the base currency and operations outside Norway, the Group is exposed to changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group has liabilities denominated in foreign currencies reducing the foreign currency
exposure related to net assets in foreign currencies. In addition, significant foreign currency cash flows are
hedged by financial instruments.
Schibsted is exposed to interest rate risk, as the Group’s net interest bearing debt only partly is at fixed rates.

.....................................

20.

.............................

NOTE

......................................................

Assumptions:
Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets
Wage growth
Inflation / social security base adjustment
Pension adjustment

2000

1 740
1 457
(283)
(252)
(535)
14
(549)

........

Projected benefit obligation
Plan assets
Calculated net pension liabilities
Unrecognised gains and losses
Net pension liabilities
Of which prepaid pension cost
Of which accrued pension liabilities

........

(NOK million)
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............................................................................

...............................

..........................................................................

...............................................

......................................

......................................

......................................

...............................

.........

..........

NOTE

21.

TA X E S

Tax expense consists of the following items:
(NOK million)

2000

1999

1998

Current income taxes
Deferred income taxes
Total

275
60
335

99
(12)
87

92
4
96

2000

1999

1998

(29)
14
(337)
700
348
(326)
22
6
104
(98)
20
(78)
61

(16)
13
(308)
345
34
(412)
(378)
(106)
22
(128)
71
(57)
(24)

(28)
9
(271)
372
82
(294)
(212)
(59)
30
(89)
48
(41)
7

Net deferred tax liability (asset) consists of the following items:
(NOK million)

Temporary differences related to:
Current assets and liabilities
Prepaid pension cost
Accrued pension liabilities
Other long term differences
Total temporary differences
Carry forward losses
Total
Net deferred tax liability (asset)
Deferred tax liability
Calculated deferred tax asset
Unrecognised deferred tax asset
Deferred tax asset
Change in net deferred tax liability (asset)

Approximately 85% of carry forward losses are related to operations outside of Norway. The majority of the
losses expire after 2006.
The change in net deferred tax liability (asset) is allocated between the following items:
(NOK million)

Ordinary income tax expense
Effect of acquisitions / sales of subsidiaries
Total

2000

1999

1998

60
1
61

(12)
(12)
(24)

4
3
7

Below is set out the differences between profit before taxes and taxable income:
(NOK million)

2000

1999

1998

Profit before taxes
Permanent differences
Change in temporary differences
Taxable income
Current income taxes

950
246
(214)
982
275

114
188
48
350
99

267
77
(16)
328
92

Permanent differences include amortisation of goodwill, income from associated companies, carry forward
losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised and other not deductible expenses.

NOTE

22.

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current liabilities consists of the following items:
(NOK million)

Trade creditors
Public duties payable
Taxes payable
Dividends payable
Accrued wages
Prepayment from customers
Other current liabilities
Total
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2000

1999

1998

394
264
212
138
358
307
590
2 263

426
205
94
121
260
223
509
1 838

359
251
75
121
270
211
603
1 890

NOTE

23.

JOINT VENTURES

Joint ventures are accounted for using pro rata consolidation. The Group’s share of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities are recorded line by line in the consolidated financial statements.
The most significant operations accounted for as joint ventures are described below:

Sandrew Metronome AB
Scandinavia Online AS
Scandinavia Online AB
Alt om København KS
AS SL Õhtuleht
AS Ajakirjade Kirjastus

Ownership/
share of control
31 December 2000

Location

Business
area

50.0%

Stockholm
Oslo
Stockholm
Copenhagen
Tallinn
Tallinn

TV Film
Multimedia
Multimedia
Multimedia
Estonia
Estonia

49.0%
50.0%
50.0%

Schibsted’s direct ownership interest in Scandinavia Online AS, Norway and Scandinavia Online AB, Sweden
was accounted for as joint ventures until 31 March 2000. Following the establishment and listing of the
Scandinavia Online Group, Schibsted’s ownership interests in Scandinavia Online AB is accounted for as an
associated company from 1 April 2000.
Key figures for joint ventures included in the consolidated financial statements are presented below:
Share of
operating
expenses

Share of
operating
profit

Share of
profit
before taxes

439
32
7
4
10
18

423
14
20
11
10
17

16
18
(13)
(7)
0
1

14
106
(17)
(8)
0
1

Share of
fixed assets

Share of
current assets

Share of long
term liabilities
and provisions

Share of
current
liabilities

187
1
1
2

112
2
5
9

32
0
0
0

116
3
5
9

(NOK million)

Sandrew Metronome AB
Alt om København KS
AS SL Õhtuleht
AS Ajakirjade Kirjastus

24.

A D D I T I O NA L I N FO R M AT I O N T O S TAT E M E N T
OF CASH FLOW

........

NOTE

The consolidated statement of cash flow show payments for acquisition of subsidiaries and joint ventures net
of cash acquired. Non-cash transactions in connection with the acquisitions are:

..........................................................................

..............................

219
242
696
1 157
(936)
221

..........................................................................

24
68
244
336
(63)
273

.....................................

4
2
34
40
(8)
32

.....................................

1998

.....................................

1999

.............................

Cash in acquired companies
Fair value of other current assets
Fair value of fixed assets
Total fair value of assets acquired
Minority interests and liabilities assumed
Cash paid for equity

2000

........

(NOK million)

......................................................

Sandrew Metronome AB
Scandinavia Online AS
Scandinavia Online AB
Alt om København KS
AS SL Õhtuleht
AS Ajakirjade Kirjastus

Share of
operating
revenues

........

(NOK million)
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............................................................................

...............................

..........................................................................

...............................................

......................................

NOTE

25.

C O N S O L I D AT E D S U B S I D I A R I E S

The following subsidiaries, owned directly or indirectly by Schibsted ASA are included in the consolidated
financial statements at 31 December 2000:

......................................

......................................

...............................

.........

..........

Schibsted Print Media AS
Osloavisen AS
Aftenposten AS
Finn.no AS
Finn Jobb.no AS
Finn Bil.no AS
Finn Eiendom.no AS
Meglernett AS
OsloPuls.no AS
Aftenposten Multimedia AS
Nye Aftenposten Multimedia AS
Mediearkivet.no AS
PrimeTime.net AS
Annonseguiden.no AS
Verdens Gang AS
Avisretur AS
VG Pluss AS
Aftonbladet Hierta AB*
Aftonbladet Nya Medier AB
Hierta Nymedia AB
Tabloiden Förvaltnings AB
Hierta Venture AB
Hierta Tidningen AB
Svenska Dagbladet Holding AB
Svenska Dagbladet AB
HB Svenska Dagbladet and Co. AB
Svenska Dagbladet Annons AB
Annonsmaterial AB
Svenska Dagbladet Distribusjon AB
Svenska Dagbladet Venture AB
Svenska Dagbladet Executive Club AB
Svenska Dagbladet Information AB
Headhunter AB
Svensk Radiobokning AB
Schibsted AG
Schibsted Eesti AS
AS Eesti Meedia
Kroonpress AS
Müügigrupp OÜ
AS Postimees
AS Sõnumileht
Sakala Kirjastuse AS
AS Viru Press
Järva Teataja Kirjastuse AS
AS Pärnu Postimees
AS Eesti Ajakirjade Kirjastuse
AS QuickPrint
OÜ Gildi Maja
AS Kanal 2
Schibsted Trykk AS
Tidningstryckarna Aftonbladet Svenska Dagbladet AB
Fastighets AB Tidningsfabriken
Scanpix Scandinavia AB
Scanpix Sverige AB
Scanpix Norge AS
Picturegate AB
Gratisavisen avis1 AS

Location

Ownership
%

Share of control
%

Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Berlin
Tartu
Tartu
Tartu
Tartu
Tallinn
Tallinn
Viljandi
Rakvere
Paide
Pärnu
Tallinn
Tallinn
Tartu
Tallinn
Oslo
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Oslo
Stockholm
Oslo

100.00
100.00
100.00
62.00
62.00
62.00
49.60
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
50.10
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
100.00
100.00
92.50
92.20
92.50
92.50
92.50
46.25
52.03
46.25
92.50
92.50
92.50
92.50
96.40
100.00
94.33
94.33
61.47
61.47
30.80
61.47
100.00

100.00
100.00
100.00
62.00
62.00
62.00
49.60
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
50.10
100.00
49.90
49.90
49.90
49.90
49.90
49.90
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
88.65
100.00
100.00
92.50
92.20
92.50
92.50
91.34
46.25
52.03
46.25
92.50
92.50
92.50
92.50
99.92
100.00
69.32
69.32
61.47
61.47
30.80
61.47
100.00

* Aftonbladets Hierta AB is owned by Schibsted and Swedish LO ( the Swedish Labour Union). LO holds 50.1% of
the voting shares through preferred shares with a fixed annual return (SEK 3.6 million). Schibsted holds 49.9%
of the voting shares and is in charge of the industrial and financial development of Aftonbladet.
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......................................................

..........................................................................

..............................

..........................................................................

.....................................

.....................................

100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
65.00
65.00
32.50
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
61.75
32.50
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
61.75
61.75
61.10
39.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
80.00
80.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
93.86
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00

.....................................

100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
65.00
65.00
32.50
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
61.75
32.50
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
61.75
61.75
61.10
39.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
80.00
80.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
98.87
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00

.............................

Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Stockholm
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Copenhagen
Copenhagen
Copenhagen
Copenhagen
Copenhagen
Helsinki
Stockholm
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Helsingborg
Warsaw
Helsinki
Stockholm
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Stockholm
Stockholm
Oslo
Stockholm
Stockholm
Gothenburg
Gothenburg
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Stockholm
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Stockholm

........

Share of control
%

........

Ownership
%

........

Schibsted TV, Film og Forlag AS
Schibsted TV & Film Infrastruktur AS
Schibsted Broadcast AS
Metronome AS
Metronome Film & Television AB
Mutter Media AB
Metronome Spartacus AB
Meter Film & TV AB
Mekano Film & TV AB
Meter Fakta AB
Mekano Enterprice AB
Decimeter Film & TV AB
Skanstullsbrons Video AB
Endemol Entertainment Produktion AB
Nordic Entertainment AS
Rubicon TV AS
Metronome Spartacus AS
Mekano Film & Television AS
Endemol Entertainment APS
Mekano Film & Television APS
Nordic Entertainment AS Danmark
Metronome Production AS
Metronome Studios AS
Metronome Film & Television OY
Filmlance International AB
Schibsted-Forlagene AS
Chr. Schibsteds Forlag AS
Schibsted Internationale Bøker AS
Bladkompaniet AS
Produksjonsselskapet NÅ AS
Cesam Media AS
Boknøje AB
Pol Nordica Publishing Ltd
Oy Suomen Kikjaviihde
Full Stop Media AB
C. Huitfeldt Forlag AS
Cesam Bok ANS
Stålfjæra ANS
Dine Penger AS
SMS Publishing AB
Svenska Förlaget AB
Schibsted Multimedia AS
Schibsted Interactive AB
Schibsted Interactive Företagstjänst AB
RABB Ticketing Control AB
Ticnet AB
Schibsted Interactive Studio AS
Bokkilden AS
Beep Telekommunikasjon AS
European Media Venture AS
Memento SOL AS
Schibsted Telecom AS
Inpoc AS
Schibsted Telecom AB
Be Ep AB
Schibsted Finans AS
Schibsted Eiendom AS
Schibsted Drift AS
AS Akersgaten 34
Sandakerveien 121 AS
Akersgaten 55 AS
Schibsted Media AB

Location
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............................................................................

...............................

..........................................................................

...............................................

......................................

Income statement
Schibsted ASA

......................................

......................................

...............................

.........

..........

(NOK million)

Note

Operating revenues
Personnel expenses
Depreciation
Other operating expenses

2000

1999

2

54

86

3,4
7

(44)
(5)
(43)

(50)
(5)
(53)

(38)

(22)

361

273

323

251

(82)

(61)

241

190

Operating profit
Financial income

5

Profit before taxes
Taxes

6

Net profit
Information about:
Dividends
Group contribution payable

(138)
(192)

Oslo, 22 March 2001
The Board of Directors of Schibsted ASA
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Tinius Nagell-Erichsen
Chairman of the Board

Ole Lund

Toril Brandtzæg

Hilde Harbo

Cato A. Holmsen

Einar Kloster

Gunnar Nordby

Liz Ovesen

Jan Reinås

Ole Jacob Sunde

Kristian Wilhelmsen

Kjell Aamot
President & Chief
Executive Officer

Balance sheet at 31 December
Schibsted ASA

21

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in associated companies
Investments in other shares
Other financial fixed assets
Financial fixed assets

8
8
8
9

266
386
49
6
707

257
386
25
14
682

727

705

695
51
746

679
81
760

1 473

1 465

69
0
76
145

69
0
76
145

910
910

962
962

Fixed assets
Receivables
Cash and bank deposits
Current assets

10
11

Total assets
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital (69 250 000 shares, par value NOK 1,-)
Own shares (130 000 shares, par value NOK 1,-)
Share premium reserve
Paid in capital

13
12

Other equity
Retained earnings
Shareholders’ equity

12

1 055

1 107

Pension liabilities
Provisions

14

16
16

12
12

Current liabilities

15

402

346

1 473

1 465

Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities

......................................................

16

..........................................................................

7

..............................

Tangible fixed assets

..........................................................................

2
2

.....................................

4
4

.....................................

6

.....................................

ASSETS
Deferred tax asset
Intangible fixed assets

.............................

1999

........

2000

........

Note

........

(NOK million)
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............................................................................

...............................

..........................................................................

...............................................

......................................

Statement of cash flow
Schibsted ASA

......................................

......................................

...............................

.........

..........

(NOK million)

2000

1999

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxes
Taxes paid
Depreciation
Group contribution receivable
Change in short term receivables
Change in current liabilities
Difference between pension expenses and cash
flow related to pension plans

323
(9)
5
(305)
86
15

251
(17)
6
(205)
93
10

6

0

Cash flow from operating activities

121

138

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of depreciable assets
Investments in / sale of equity investments
Other investments / sales

(2)
(33)
6

(9)
0
(4)

Cash flow from investing activities

(29)

(13)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net group contribution received
Dividends paid
Purchase of own shares

16
(121)
(17)

60
(121)
0

(122)

(61)

(30)

64

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

81

17

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

51

81

Cash flow from financing activities
Cash flow for the year
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Notes to the parent company
financial statements
NOTE

1.

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Schibsted ASA follows the accounting principles described in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements
except from investments in associated companies being accounted for at cost. Dividends from associated companies are included in financial income.

Change in accounting principles
Schibsted ASA has in 2000 changed accounting principle for investments in associated companies from using
the equity method of accounting to use the cost method. Comparable figures for 1999 are similarly restated.
The impact on shareholders’ equity is disclosed in note 12.

NOTE

2.

O P E R AT I NG R EV E N U E S

Operating revenues consists of:
(NOK million)

Revenues
Other operating income
Total

2000

1999

7
47
54

2
84
86

Revenues consist of accounting fees and other fees for assistance to other group companies. Other operating
income consists of royalty related to the VG publishing rights. In 1999 other operating income also included
income from Telenor related to transfer of internet access subscribers due to the reorganisation of Schibsted Net.

R E M U N E R AT I O N T O T H E B OA R D O F D I R E C T O R S ,
T H E C E O A N D T H E C O M PA N Y ’ S A U D I T O R S

Schibsted ASA has paid NOK 1 238 000 in remuneration to the Board of Directors. Members of the Board of
Directors of Schibsted ASA have also received a total amount of NOK 461 000 in directors fees from subsidiaries.
Schibsted ASA has paid NOK 2 323 000 in salaries, including directors fees from subsidiaries to the Chief
Executive Officer. He has also received NOK 110 000 in other taxable remuneration and NOK 628 000 in
pension plan payments.

........

Under certain conditions the company is obliged to pay remuneration in the amount of 24 and 18 months’
salary to the CEO and other members of Group management.

........

The CEO may choose to leave his position at the age of 65 and receive a pension amounting to 90 % of his
salary in the period 65-67 years. The Chairman of the Board has no remuneration if he chooses to leave his
position. Remuneration to the Chairman of the Board is deducted from his pension benefits earned in his
previous position in the Group.

..........................................................................

..............................

..........................................................................

.....................................
.....................................

.....................................

Schibsted ASA has paid NOK 520 000 in auditor’s fees and NOK 39 000 in fees related to supplementary services in
Schibsted ASA. The Schibsted Group has paid NOK 5 600 000 in auditor’s fees, and has also paid NOK 2 900 000
to the Group’s auditors for supplementary services.

.............................

Schibsted ASA’s Group Management has an incentive programme that is divided in two, a bonus programme
related to achieving financial goals and an option programme. The annual cash bonus for the Group Management is maximum two monthly salaries. At the same time it will be possible to obtain options of the Schibsted
share over a period of three years (2000, 2001, 2002) at a price of NOK 185. The options must be executed within
the end of 2003. At the introduction of the incentive programme the option programme comprises the following
persons: President and CEO Kjell Aamot – 30 000 (10 000 p.a.), Executive Vice Presidents Trond Berger, Sverre
Munck, Jan Erik Knarbakk and Birger Magnus – 15 000 (5 000 p.a.). Executive Vice President Sverre Munck also
has a separate incentive plan under which he has acquired and controls 89 730 shares in Scandinavia Online AB.

......................................................

3.

........

NOTE
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............................................................................

...............................

..........................................................................

...............................................

......................................

NOTE

4.

PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Personnel expenses consists of:
(NOK million)

2000

1999

29
5
6
4
44

34
7
5
4
50

2000

1999

2
24
305
18
12
361

3
29
205
33
3
273

2000

1999

323
0
8
331

251
3
1
255

28 %

28 %

2000

1999

93
(8)
84
(54)
31

71
(10)
61
(53)
8

84
(2)
82

61
0
61

(NOK million)

2000

1999

Temporary differences related to:
Tangible fixed assets
Prepaid pension cost
Accrued pension liabilities
Net temporary differences

(4)
5
(16)
(15)

(1)
6
(12)
(7)

28 %

28 %

(4)

(2)

......................................

Salaries and wages
Social security cost
Net pension cost
Other benefits
Total

......................................

Average number of employees has been 51 in 2000.

...............................

.........

..........

NOTE

5.

FINANCIAL INCOME

Financial income consists of:
(NOK million)

Interest income
Interest income group companies
Group contribution receivable
Dividends from associated companies
Other financial income
Total

NOTE

6.

TA X E S

Below is set out the difference between profit before taxes and taxable income:
(NOK million)

Profit before taxes
Permanent differences
Change in temporary differences
Taxable income
Tax rate
Income taxes and taxes payable are calculated as follows:
(NOK million)

Calculated taxes payable
Tax credit on dividends
Current income taxes
Taxes payable related to group contribution payable
Taxes payable
Current income taxes
Deferred income taxes
Total taxes
Deferred tax asset consists of the following:

Tax rate
Deferred tax asset
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NOTE

7.

TA NG I B L E F I X E D A S S E T S

(NOK million)

Equipment / furniture / vehicles

Cost at 1 January
Additions
Disposals at cost
Cost at 31 December

34
2
(1)
35

Accumulated depreciation at 1 January
Accumulated depreciation disposals
Depreciation in 2000
Accumulated depreciation at 31 December

(13)
0
(5)
(19)

Book value at 31 December

16

Depreciation method
Estimated useful life
Annual operating lease payments

Straight line
3 – 10 years
11

Depreciation in 2000 includes depreciation of leasehold improvements with NOK 1 million.

INVESTMENTS IN SHARES

15 000
20
105 382
60 071
78 512
126 863
385 848

Investments in other shares
Scanpix Scandinavia AB
Harstad Tidende AS
Asker og Bærums Budstikke AS
Sponsor Service ASA
Total

18.32
11.10
10.20
4.90

Stockholm
Harstad
Billingstad
Oslo

1 550
3 132
20 781
24 000
49 463

Ownership (%) equals share of control.

......................................................

Kristiansand
Kristiansand
Trondheim
Stavanger
Bergen
Bergen

..........................................................................

25.00
25.00
31.86
31.48
22.67
33.33

..............................

Investments in associated companies
Fædrelandsvennen AS
Fædrelandsvennen Trykkeri AS
Adresseavisen ASA
Stavanger Aftenblad ASA
Bergens Tidende AS
TV 2 AS
Total

..........................................................................

25 000
30 000
50
10 000
115 905
30
200
200
75 412
492
9 023
266 312

.....................................

Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Oslo
Stockholm
Oslo

.....................................

100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00

Investments in subsidiaries
Verdens Gang AS
Aftenposten AS
Osloavisen AS
Schibsted Finans AS
Schibsted Eiendom AS
Chr. Schibsteds Forlag AS
Schibsted Print Media AS
Schibsted Multimedia AS
Metronome AS
Schibsted Media AB
Schibsted TV, Film og Forlag AS
Total

.....................................

Book
value

.............................

Location

........

Ownership
%

(NOK 1000)

........

8.

........

NOTE
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............................................................................

...............................

..........................................................................

...............................................

......................................

......................................

......................................

...............................

.........

..........

NOTE

9.

OTHER FINANCIAL FIXED ASSETS

Other financial fixed assets consist of:
(NOK million)

2000

1999

1
5
6

7
7
14

(NOK million)

2000

1999

Short term receivables group companies
Other receivables
Total

684
11
695

667
12
679

Other long term receivables
Prepaid pension cost (note 14)
Total

NOTE

10.

R E C E I VA B L E S

Receivables consist of:

NOTE

11.

CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

Restricted bank deposits for employee tax withholdings amounts to NOK 2.1 million. Bank deposits of NOK 7.2
million are pledged as security for loans to employees. Se also note 17.
Schibsted ASA's bank accounts are included in a group system in order to optimise liquidity management.
The companies participating in this arrangement are jointly and severally liable to the bank for all liabilities
arising under the group account arrangement.

NOTE

12.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Change in shareholders’ equity were as follows in 2000:
Share
capital

Own
shares

Share
premium
reserve

Reserve for
valuation
variances

Other
equity

Total

69

0

76

169

962

1 276

(NOK million)

Shareholders’ equity at 31 Dec 1999
Change in accounting
principle associated companies
Shareholders’ equity at 31 Dec 1999
after change in accounting principle
Purchase of own shares
Net profit
Group contribution payable (net)
Dividends
Shareholders’ equity at 31 Dec 2000

(169)
69

0

76

0

69

0

76

0

(169)
962
(17)
241
(138)
(138)
910

1 107
(17)
241
(138)
(138)
1 055

Schibsted ASA has in 2000 purchased 130.000 own shares for a total of NOK 17 million in order to secure
options granted to senior management. Par value NOK 130 000 is presented in a separate line of paid in
capital. Purchase price exceeding par value is deducted from other equity.
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NOTE

13.

OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

Shareholders at 31 December 2000:
Share %

18 083 520
3 762 300
3 597 819
3 128 222
3 032 349
2 920 231
2 495 400
2 403 058
1 392 737
1 291 100
1 148 500
1 001 429
935 750
650 000
550 000
520 849
430 853
425 900
416 700
411 565
400 000
48 998 282

26.11
5.43
5.19
4.52
4.38
4.22
3.60
3.47
2.01
1.86
1.66
1.45
1.35
0.94
0.79
0.75
0.62
0.62
0.60
0.59
0.58
70.76

174
399
2 200
6 000
399
41
1 950
20 000
3 000
12 175
5 223
8 924
4 324
2 224
67 033

......................................................

Toril Brandtzæg
Hilde Harbo
Cato A. Holmsen
Einar Kloster
Gunnar Nordby
Liz Ovesen
Jan Reinås
Ole Jacob Sunde
Kristian Wilhelmsen
Kjell Aamot
Trond Berger
Birger Magnus
Jan Erik Knarbakk
Sverre Munck
Total Board of Directors and Group Management

Number of shares

........

Blommenholm Industrier AS by/Tinius Nagell-Erichsen
Folketrygdfondet
Boston Safe Dep. & Trust Nominee
Avanse
Marathon
Orkla ASA
Storebrand Livsforsikring AS
State Street Bank
Chase Manhattan Bank S/A Omnibus Lending
KLP Forsikring
Vital Forsikring ASA
Gjensidige NOR
Handelsbanken Helsinki
Guri Scotford Schibsted Trust
Aksjefondet K-avkastning
Chase Manhattan Bank S/A BGI Treaty Lending
The Northern Trust Co. Treaty Account
Storebrand AMS
Postbanken Aksjespar
Fidelity Funds
BNP Paribas
20 largest shareholders

........

69 250 000

........

..........................................................................

..............................

..........................................................................

.............................
.....................................
.....................................

.....................................

Total number of shares Schibsted ASA
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............................................................................

...............................

..........................................................................

...............................................

......................................

......................................

......................................

...............................

.........

..........

NOTE

14.

PENSION PLANS

For description of the pension plans for Schibsted ASA, see note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
The net pension cost is computed as follows:
(NOK million)

2000

1999

5
3
(2)
0
6

5
2
(2)
0
5

(NOK million)

2000

1999

Accumulated benefit obligation
Value of future wage growth
Projected benefit obligation
Plan assets
Calculated net pension liabilities
Unrecognised gains and losses
Net pension liabilities

46
9
55
38
(17)
6
(11)

39
8
47
31
(16)
11
(5)

Of which prepaid pension cost
Of which accrued pension liabilities

5
(16)

7
(12)

(NOK million)

2000

1999

Trade creditors
Taxes payable
Public duties payable
Dividends payable
Short term liabilities group companies
Other current liabilities
Total

4
31
4
138
216
9
402

5
8
7
121
195
10
346

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortisation of gains and losses
Net pension cost
Funded status of the pension plans are as follows:

NOTE

15.

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current liabilities consist of following items:

NOTE

16.

G UA R A N T E E S

Schibsted ASA has issued guarantees in respect of loans to Schibsted Finans AS totalling NOK 3.2 billion of
which NOK 1.4 billion are drawn at the end of the year. In addition the company has issued guarantees in
respect of pension liabilities of Aftonbladet Hierta AB of SEK 92 million and leasing of print presses in
Tidningstryckarna AB of SEK 151 million.

NOTE

17.

G UA R A N T E E S I N R E S P E C T O F T H E E M P L OY E E S

Schibsted ASA has issued guarantees in respect of loans to the employees totalling NOK 7.2 million of which
guarantees in respect of members of the group management amounts to NOK 1.6 million:
(NOK 1000)

Kjell Aamot
Jan Erik Knarbakk
Trond Berger
Sverre Munck
Total
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400
400
400
400
1 600
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.............................

.....................................

.....................................

.....................................

........

........

........

......................................................

..........................................................................

..............................

..........................................................................

Auditor’s statement

............................................................................

...............................

..........................................................................

...............................................

......................................

Value added statement Schibsted Group

......................................

(NOK million)

......................................

2000

1999

Operating revenues
- consumption of
goods/serv. purchased

8 270

7 402

EMPLOYEES
Gross wages and
social expenses

4 871

4 332

(of which withholding taxes)

Gross value added
- depreciation

3 399
480

3 070
484

Net value added
+ financial income
+ other income and expenses

2 919
540
96

2 586
73
80

...............................

.........

Values for distribution

3 555

2 739

2000

1999

2 077
706

2 109
717

PROVIDERS OF CAPITAL
Interest payments to lenders
Dividend to shareholders

127
138

131
121

GOVERNMENT AND MUNICIPALITY
Taxes and duties

736

472

477
3 555

(94)
2 739

RETAINED WITHIN THE GROUP
Retained for future
value creation
Values distributed

..........

Distribution of Value Added 2000
Retained within
the Group

Government
and municipality

Gross value added consists of aggregated operating revenues less the
value of goods and services consumed. Depreciation represents the loss
in the value of production equipment during the year and is deducted
together with other goods and services consumed.

13%

Lenders
Shareholders

4%
4%

The difference between gross value added and depreciation equals net
value added. Financial income represents an addition to net value
added.

21%
58%
Employees
(incl. taxes)
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The Group’s value added over the year is created from labour, capital
and technology.

The value created is divided between the employees, providers of capital
(lenders and shareholders), the state (government and municipality) and the
group companies (retained for future value creation and to strengthen the
capital base).

a n n ua l a c c ou n t s 77

Management Trainee Programme

For a media company such as Schibsted, its ability to provide a working environment which
attracts talented young people is crucial. As a
result, Schibsted attaches great importance to the
recruitment of the right people.
A management training programme was
initiated on 1st January 1997 aimed at identifying and developing potential future managers for
the Schibsted companies.
Over a two-year period, selected candidates
are given the opportunity to experience the
media industry from the inside. During this time,
the candidates work in various business areas.
The Schibsted’s management trainee programme gives the participants a unique opportunity to try their hand in various areas, with a broad range of tasks. The trainees are given guidance
and assistance. There is a strong emphasis on
both professional and personal development, and
the breadth of tasks and challenges which confronts the trainees provides them with solid
foundation for their future career.
In selecting candidates for the trainee programme, we seek to combine a broad range of
interests and skills so that we can build a team of
people who can stimulate and complement each
other. The programme is targeted at students
from universities, business schools and technical
colleges in Norway, Sweden and the rest of the
world. New trainees are admitted to the programme twice a year, in early February and
September. Most of the trainees have taken up
permanent positions in the Group’s subsidiaries
on completion of the trainee period.

More information about the management trainee
programme at www.schibsted.no
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Some of Schibsted’s Websites

www.aftenposten.no

www.kanal2.ee

www.smspublishing.se

www.scanpix.net

www.dagensmedisin.no

www.metronome.se

www.inpoc.no
www.inpoc.se

www.vg.no

www.aftonbladet.se

www.svd.se

www.sandrewmetronome.com
www.europeanmediaventures.no

www.avis1.com
www.tv2.no

www.bokkilden.no

www.aok.dk
www.20minuten.ch
www.20minutenkoeln.de

www.postimees.ee
www.sloleht.ee
www.kronika.ee

www.schibsted-forlag.no

www.bladkompaniet.no

www.scandinaviaonline.com

www.dinepenger.no

www.ticnet.se

Overview over the Schibsted Group
per 31.03.2001
= Business Areas

Harstad
Tidende Gruppen AS

= Companies

N 40%

= Subsidiaries

Bergens
Tidende AS

Fædrelandsvennen AS

N 24%

Regional
Newspapers

N 25%

Stavanger
Aftenblad ASA

Adresseavisen ASA

N 31%

N 32%

%

= Schibsted’s Ownership

%

= Subsidiary’s Ownership

Aftonbladet
Nya Medier AB
S 100%

Svenska Dagbladet
Holding AB

Aftonbladet
Hierta AB

Hierta
Venture AB

S 89%

S 49% 1)

S 100%

N 100%

N 50%

VG
Top Jobs AS

Gratisavisen
avis 1 AS

Newspapers

Verdens Gang AS

Avisretur AS

N 100%

Tidningstryckarna
Aftonbladet / Svenska
Dagbladet AB

VG
Multimedia AS

N 49%

S 94%

20 Minutes
Holding AG

N 100%

CH 41%

Kroonpress
EST 92%

Printing Plants

PrimeTime.net AS
N 100%

FINN.no AS

Aftenposten AS

N 62%

N 100%

Schibsted
Trykk AS

Bus iness area
Aftenposten
Multimedia AS

Mediearkivet.no AS

N 100%

Newspapers

N 100%

N 100%

AS Norsk
Telegrambyrå, NTB
AS Kanal 2
EST 96%

N 22%

Schibsted
in Estonia

Picture and
news agencies
AS Eesti Meedia

Picturegate AB

EST 93%

S 100%

AS Postimees

AS SL Õhtuleht

EST 100%

EST 50%

Scanpix
Sverige AB

Scanpix
Danmark AS

S 100%

DK 49%

Scanpix
Norge AS
N 50%
1)

S 30%

S 75 %

Estonian
Magazine Group
EST 50%

Tidningarnas
Telegrambyrå AB

Scanpix
Scandinavia AB

Schibsted controls 100%
N = Norway S = Sweden DK = Denmark CH = Switzerland EST = Estonia PL = Poland

Metronome
Studios AS

Metronome
Film & Television OY

DK 95%

SF 94%

Metronome
Production AS

Metronome
Spartacus AS

DK 95%

N 50%

Metronome
Spartacus AB
S 50%

Nordic
Entertainment AS
N 100%

Intrige AS
N 33%

Rubicon TV AS

Metronome
Film & Television AB

N 95%

S 65%

Mekano
Film & Television AB

Hotel
Seger AB
S 25%

Big
Brother AB

Meter
Fakta AB

S 100%

TV 2

Filmlance
International AB

N 33%

S 60%

S 50%

S 100%

TV

Meter
Film & Television AB

Film and TV
production

S 100%

Bus iness area

TV,Film & Publishing
Distribution
og Rights
Sandrew
Metronome
Sverige AB

Sandrew
Metronome
Distribution
Sverige AB

S 100%

S 100%

Sandrew
Metronome AB

Sandrew
Metronome
Norge AS

Chr. Schibsteds
Forlag AS
N 100%

Sandrew
Metronome
International AB

Dagens
Medisin AS
N 50%

Schibsted
Internasjonale Bøker AS

Publishing
Companies

S 100%

N 100%

S 50%

N 100%

Sandrew
Metronome
Distribution
Finland OY AB
SF 100%

Sandrew
Metronome
Danmark AS

SMS
Publishing AB

Dine Penger AS

S 100%

N 100%

DK 100%

Sandrew
Metronome
Finland OY AB
SF 100%

C. Huitfeldt
Forlag AS

Maison
Sverige AB

N 100%

S 100%

Bladkompaniet

Cesam
Media AS

N 100%

N 100%

Maison
Norge AS
N 100%

Boknöje AB
S 100%

Full Stop
Media AB
S 100%

Pol-Nordica
Publishing
PL 100%

European Media
Ventures AS (EMV)
N 100%

Bokkilden AS
N 100%

Majority owned
Companies

Hugin AS
N 23%

Schibsted
Telecom AS
N 100%

Scandinavia
Online AB

BiljettDirekt
TicNet AB

S 35%

S 31%

Bus iness area

Minority owned
Companies

Multimedia

Safetel ASA

ABC
Startsiden AS
N 17%

Crossroads AB

N 12%

S 17%

Alt om
København KS
DK 49%

Venture Funds 1
Four Seasons
Venture

Telenor Venture

Arts Alliance

1)

Minor investments in various funds

Key Figures – The Schibsted Group
(NOK million)

2000

1999

1998

1997*

1996*

Operating revenues
Operating result before goodwill
and other revenues and expenses
Operating result
Profit before taxes

8 270

7 402

6 559

5 360

4 569

513
537
950

298
172
114

509
318
267

645
731

578
579

Operating margin (%)
Profit ratio (%)
Equity ratio (%)
Return on equity (%)
Return on total assets (%)

6.2
7.3
37.8
24.2
14.6

4.0
0.6
33.3
1.8
3.5

7.7
2.6
37.3
7.3
6.1

12.0
9.6
50.6
24.6
17.9

12.6
8.9
48.1
23.2
18.5

EPS (NOK)
Cash flow per share (NOK)

8.78
15.15

0.61
8.76

2.48
9.95

7.47
10.00

5.79
9.50

6 637

6 084

5 580

4 820

4 046

450
463
6.8

322
174
5.3

641
433
11.5

633
13.1

502
12.3

198

194

108

-

-

(20)
(39)
(10.1)

(32)
(50)
(16.3)

(31)
(39)
(28.7)

-

-

1 076

709

648

364

308

78
66
7.3

32
8
4.5

15
25
2.3

1
0.2

(14)
(4.5)

277

268

120

92

48

18
19
6.3

8
(8)
2.9

8
3
(6.7)

(3)
(3.4)

9
18.2

73

139

109

97

161

(113)
(63)
(154.5)

(86)
(6)
(61.5)

(174)
(182)
(159.6)

(87)
(90.3)

2
1.2

Aftenposten morning edition, weekdays
Aftenposten afternoon edition, weekdays
Aftenposten, Sunday

276 429
175 783
235 441

284 251
180 497
236 995

288 078
186 418
238 181

286 163
191 269
230 118

283 915
188 635
223 501

Verdens Gang, weekdays
Verdens Gang, Sunday

375 983
313 261

373 552
307 863

364 825
299 732

370 115
294 019

356 861
279 571

Aftonbladet, weekdays
Aftonbladet, Sunday

379 933
454 917

380 600
475 100

397 200
502 100

407 900
510 183

381 200
484 400

Svenska Dagbladet, weekdays
Svenska Dagbladet, Sunday

175 771
190 041

178 100
193 700

185 000
199 900

194 500
208 500

187 600
202 300

61 599
7 690
11 185
28 514

55 311
7 326
12 274
29 832

59 332
7 430
11 898
32 485

57 859
7 901
11 072
34 499

52 126
7 419
11 143
32 440

N E W S PA P E R S
Operating revenues
Operating result before goodwill
and other revenues and expenses
Operating result
Operating margin (%)

ESTONIA
Operating revenues
Operating result before goodwill
and other revenues and expenses
Operating result
Operating margin (%)

TV/FILM
Operating revenues
Operating result before goodwill
and other revenues and expenses
Operating result
Operating margin (%)

PUBLISHING
Operating revenues
Operating result before goodwill
and other revenues and expenses
Operating result
Operating margin (%)

M U LT I M E D I A
Operating revenues
Operating result before goodwill
and other revenues and expenses
Operating result
Operating margin (%)

C I R C U L AT I O N

ADVERTISING VOLUMES
(COLUMN METERS)
Aftenposten
Verdens Gang
Aftonbladet
Svenska Dagbladet

* Not recalculated according to new classification of operating result

DEFINITIONS
Operating margin
Profit ratio
Equity ratio
Return on equity
Return on total assets
EPS
Cash flow per share

Operating profit before goodwill and other revenues and expenses / Operating revenues
Net profit attributable to majority interests / Operating revenues
Shareholders’ equity / Total assets
Net profit attributable to majority interests / Average equity excl. minority interests
(Profit before taxes + interest expenses) / Average total assets
Net profit attributable to majority interests / Average number of shares
(Profit before taxes + depreciation +/- net changes in pensions +/- income from
associated companies - taxes payable) / Average number of shares

The Chief Executive Officer
The dynamic process of change in the media sector continues, and in terms of creating a new media
reality Scandinavia is one of the world’s most exciting markets. For the Schibsted Group, steeped in
tradition, this is naturally a challenging situation, but above all else it offers the prospect of further
growth and development in a number of areas.
The Schibsted share price was negatively affected by repricing of technology and media shares in
2000, just as the overheated «dot.com» market had the corresponding opposite effect in the previous
year. But regardless of these fluctuations, the Group has remained committed to the long-term strategy
that was drawn up in 1995. The vision of becoming Scandinavia’s leading media company by being the
preferred supplier of content for readers, viewers and advertisers, irrespective of the medium chosen,
remains the basis upon which all major decisions are made affecting Group strategy.
In view of the international competition and the process of globalisation that are increasingly
affecting developments in the media market, it is even more important that Schibsted exploits its
competitive advantages in the home market. In the first instance, this means maintaining and strengthening the Group’s strong market positions in the traditional media areas, while at the same time
establishing corresponding positions in the new media channels. So far, we have done better than
most of the comparable media companies with roots in the publication of newspapers, and today the
Schibsted Group enjoys a position at the very forefront of developments in Internet activities in
Scandinavia.
The Group’s competitive advantages are founded first and foremost on strong brand names and the
ongoing content which we provide, as well as rights and marketing capacity through newspapers and
online sites – and not least the broad expertise within the Group.
Human capital has always played a decisive role in the media industry, but its importance has never
been greater than now. Our ability to attract, develop and keep talented people will determine the extent
to which we succeed in the future.
Another determinant of success is the extent to which we are able to reinvest the positive cash flow
from our established businesses in growth areas within the media sector. This is where our focus must
be targeted, with our attention concentrated on companies where we have strategic control. Where we
have no such control, our involvement will be in the nature of a financial investment. Given the pace of
change that characterises our core businesses, there is no room for historical sentimentality. On the contrary, there is a great need for financial flexibility and freedom of action in order to exploit opportunities
that are geared to the future and that can contribute to Schibsted’s further development.
In order to implement a strategy of this kind, and to secure continued growth, there should be further
internationalisation of the Group’s activities – but only as long as it is rooted in strong market positions in
our home markets and based on leading expertise in areas where the Group has a competitive
advantage.
With a focus on content, utilisation of rights
and product development, the Schibsted Group
will remain committed to the strategy that has
guided its development in the last few years.
Never have there been more opportunities. Never
have we been able to offer our employees such
an exciting range of possibilities. And never have
our market positions been stronger. Hopefully, we
will be able to take full advantage of this situation
for the benefit of the company, our business partners and our customers – and not least for the
benefit of our shareholders.

Kjell Aamot

Chief Executive Officer

Company addresses
Aftenposten
Akersgaten 51, Oslo
Postal address: Postboks 1178
Sentrum, N-0107 Oslo
Tel: +47 22 86 30 00
Fax: +47 22 86 38 17
E-mail: Aftenposten@
aftenposten.no
www.aftenposten.no
FINN.no
Akersgaten 34, Oslo
Postal address: Postboks 1178
Sentrum, N-0107 Oslo
Tel: +47 22 86 44 10
Fax: +47 22 82 78 23
E-mail : firmapost@finn.no
www.finn.no
Verdens Gang
Akersgaten 55, Oslo
Postal address: Postboks 1185
Sentrum, N-0107 Oslo
Tel: +47 22 00 00 00
Fax: +47 22 42 67 80
E-mail : info@vg.no
www.vg.no
avis1
Grensen 5-7, Oslo
Postal address: Postboks 1178
Sentrum, N-0107 Oslo
Tel: +47 22 33 10 00
Fax: +47 23 31 76 80
E-mail : avis1@avis1.com
www.avis1.com
Schibsted Trykk
Sandakerveien 121, Oslo
Postadresse: Postboks 4583
Torshov, N-0404 Oslo
Tel: +47 23 39 10 00
Fax: +47 23 39 10 01
E-mail :
schibsted.trykk@strykk.no
Aftonbladet
Arenavägen 63, Stockholm
Postal address:
S-105 18, Stockholm
Tel: +46 87 25 20 00.
Fax: +46 86 00 01 70
E-mail:
stefan.lundin@aftonbladet.se
www.aftonbladet.se
Aftonbladet Nya Medier
Arenavägen 63, Stockholm
Postal address:
S-105 18, Stockholm
Tel: +46 8 56 25 29 00
Fax: +46 8 56 25 28 29
E-mail:
anna.hellden@aftonbladet.se
www.aftonbladet.se
Hierta Venture
Arenavägen 63, Stockholm.
Postal address:
S-103 18, Stockholm
Tel: +46 8 725 20 00
Fax: +46 8 562 528 55
E-mail: info@hiertaventure.com
www.hiertaventure.com

Svenska Dagbladet
Gjörwellsgatan 28, Stockholm
Postal address:
S-105 17, Stockholm
Tel: +46 8 13 50 00
Fax: +46 8 13 58 50
New addr. from 1.7.01:
Mäster Samuelsgatan 56,
S-105 17 Stockholm
E-mail : webmaster@svd.se
www.svd.se
Tidningstryckarna
Aftonbladet/Svenska Dagbladet
Vandagatan 3, Akalla
Postal address:
Box 45, S-164 93, Kista
Tel: +46 8-703 43 00
Fax: +46 8-703 90 04
E-mail : headquarter@ttab.se
Eesti Meedia Group
Maakri 23a Tallinn, Estonia
Postal address: Maakri 23a Tallinn
10145, Estonia
Tel: +372 666 2350
Fax: +372 666 2351
E-mail :
mart.kadastik@eestimeedia.ee
www.postimees.ee
www.sloleht.ee
www.kronika.ee
Kanal 2
Maakri 23a Tallinn, Estonia
Postal address:
Maakri 23a Tallinn 10145, Estonia
Tel: +372 666 2450
Fax: +372 666 2451
E-mail : info@kanal2.ee
www.kanal2.ee
20 Minutes Holding
Thurgauerstrasse 40, Zürich
Postal address: Thurgauerstrasse 40,
CH-8050 Zürich, Switzerland
Tel: +41 (1) 307 42 82
Fax: +41 (1) 307 42 81
E-mail: info@20-minutes.com
www.20minuten.ch
www.20minutenkoeln.de
Scanpix Scandinavia
Gjörwellsgatan 22, Stockholm
Postal address:
S-105 17, Stockholm
Tel: +46 8 13 55 50
Fax: +46 8 73 70 06
E-mail:
anders.holmstrom@scanpix.net
www.scanpix.net
Metronome Film & Television
Magasin 5, Frihamnen
Postal address: Postboks 27 837,
S-115 93 Stockholm
Tel: +46 8 459 78 00
Fax: +46 8 459 78 99
E-mail:
fredrik.borestrom@metronome.se
www.metronome.se

Sandrew Metronome
Floragatan 4, Stockholm
Postal address: Postboks 5612,
S-114 86 Stockholm
Tel: +46 8 762 17 00
Fax: +46 8 762 17 80
E-mail: kjetil.omberg@
no.sandrewmetronome.com
www.sandrewmetronome.no
Chr. Schibsteds Forlag
Akersgaten 32, Oslo
Postal address: Postboks 1178
Sentrum, N-0107 Oslo
Tel: +47 22 86 41 10
Fax: +47 22 86 41 50
E-mail:
schibsted.forlag@schibsted.no
www.schibsted-forlag.no
Bladkompaniet
Stålfjæra 5, Oslo
Postal address: Postboks 148
Kalbakken, N-0902 Oslo
Tel: +47 22 90 24 00
Fax: +47 22 90 24 01
E-mail: bladkompaniet@
bladkompaniet.no
www.bladkompaniet.no
SMS Publishing
Luntmakargatan 46, Stockholm.
Postal address: Postboks 3313,
S-103 66 Stockholm
Tel: +46 8 412 27 00
Fax: +46 8 411 41 20
E-mail: lena.kjellgren@
smspublishing.se
www.smspublishing.se
Dine Penger
Drammensveien 126 a, Oslo
Postal address: Drammensveien
126a N-0277 Oslo
Tel: +47 23 27 66 00
Fax: +47 23 27 66 10
E-mail:
dinepenger@dinepenger.no
www.dinepenger.no
Dagens Medisin
Lille Grensen 3, Oslo
Postal address: Postboks 1178
Sentrum, N-0301 Oslo
Tel: +47 23 31 76 00
Fax: +47 23 31 76 01
E-mail: post@dagensmedisin.no
www.dagensmedisin.no
Schibsted Telecom
Pilestredet 10, Oslo
Postal address: Postboks 1178
Sentrum, N-0107 Oslo
Tel: +47 23 10 67 80
Fax: +47 23 10 67 81
E-mail:
schibsted.telecom@schibsted.no
www.inpoc.no

European Media Ventures
Address Oslo: Apotekergaten 10
Address Stockholm:
Arenavägen 63, Globen City
Postal address: Postboks 1178
Sentrum N-0107 Oslo
Tel: +47 23 10 66 00
Fax: +47 23 10 66 01
E-mail: info@emvent.com
www.europeanmediaventure.com
Bokkilden
Lille Grensen 3, Oslo
Postal address: Postboks 1178
Sentrum, N-0107 Oslo
Tel: +47 23 31 77 00
Fax: +47 23 31 77 01
E-mail:
kundeservice@bokkilden.no
www.bokkilden.no
Alt om København
Grønnegade 1-3
Postal address: Grønnegade 1-3,
DK-1147 København K
Tel: +45 70 15 80 10
Fax: +45 70 15 80 20
www.aok.dk
Scandinavia Online
Kungsgatan 28
Postal address: Box 1388,
S-111 93 Stockholm
Tel: +46 8 58 78 10 00
Fax: +46 8 58 78 10 80
E-mail:
info@scandinaviaonline.se
www.scandinaviaonline.com
BiljettDirekt Ticnet
Messans gata 18
Postal address: Box 5369,
S-402 28 Göteborg
Tel: +46 31 778 6100
Fax: +46 31 778 6110
E-mail: marknad@ticnet.se
www.ticnet.se
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